II)  CHARLESWORTH  FAMILY
The Charlesworths lived at Castleton and were related to the Barkers through the marriage of Catherine, daughter of Thomas Charlesworth to John Barker, son of Henry.  Thomas Barker acted as executor for Robert Charlesworth the elder, and John Barker acted as executor for Robert Charlesworth purchased Cotes Park Farm at Alfreton, the fee farm rent of this property being sold to J. H. Barker in 1830.
A)  MUNIMENTS OF TITLE

DERBYSHIRE

1.  Parish of Alfreton: Cotes Park

Bar.D.471

Final Concord. Latin. Edward Phinney and Elizabeth Finney, widow, plaintiffs, Machell Austian (?) or Mathew Madrell and William Machell, deforceants.  A messuage and lands in Alfreton, for £100.
Easter, 1651.

Bar.D.228
Bargain and Sale.  Nicholas Leeke, son of Francis, Lord Deyncourt, Lancelot Luke of Cannons (co. Middlesex) and Thomas Leeke of Grayes Inn to Elizabeth Bancroft of the parish of St. Andrew, Holborn, widow and administratix of James Bancroft, citizen and merchant tailor, of London, Coates Park Farm in the parish of Alfreton; for £1,400.

Dec. 24th 1652.

Bar.D.461
Agreement to levy a fine.  Nicholas, Earl of Scarsdale, Sir Thomas Piers of Stonepitt and William Chapman of the Inner Temple, with John Mildmay of Danbury (co. Essex) and Mary, his wife, daughter of Elizabeth Bancroft, deceased, late wife of James Bancroft, merchant tailor of London, and Robert Stanton of Bowhardrickhill (Bucks.) and Elizabeth, his wife, also daughter of Elizabeth Bancroft.  Coates Parke, Alfreton to Piers and Chapman, in trust for Mary Mildmay.

June 14th 1663.

Bar.D.229
Lease and Release.  Robert Cory, D>D> of Danbury (co. Essex) and Mary, his wife a daughter and co-heir of Elizabeth Bancroft, widow, of James Bancroft, late citizen and merchant tailor of London, Sir Thomas Piers of stonepit in Seale (co. Kent) and William Chapman of the Middle Temple, to Edward Phiney of Greisthorpe and Robert Jackson of Alfreton.  A moiety of Coates Park of Alfreton; for £605.

Nov 27th 1675.

Bar.D.462,463
Lease and Counterpart.  Elizabeth Stanton, widow of Robert Stanton of Bowbrickhill (Bucks.) and Sir Thomas Piers to Robert Jackson of Alfreton.  Coates Park Farm; for 21 years, at £55 rent.
Nov 27th 1675.

Bar.D.464
Final Concord. Latin.  Edward Phinney and Robert Jackson, plaintiffs; Robert Cory, Professor of Divinity, and Mary his wife, Sir Thomas Piers and William Chapman, deforceants.  Moiety of a messuage and lands in Alfreton and Coates Park; for £100.
Nov 1675.

Bar.D.258
Recovery.  Latin.  William Ward v. Edward Hussey.  Moiety of a messuage and 150 acres of land in Alfreton and Coates Robert, Earl of Scarsdale and John Wheeler.

July 5th 1680.

Bar.D.231

Deed to make a tenant.  Robert, Earl of Scarsdale, and Mary, his wife, to Charles Nevile of Newark-upon-Trent.  Two messuages in Tibshelf and a moiety of Coates Park to be recovered to the use of Richard Mason of Newark and Marmaduke Machell of Alfreton.

Jan13th 1681/2.

Bar.D.465,466,467
Exemplification of a recovery.  Richard Mason and Marmaduke Machell against Charles Nevile.  Messuage, 40 acres of land, etc in Tibshelfe and a moiety of a messuage and lands in Alfreton and Coates.  Robert, Earl of Scarsdale, vouched to warranty.

Feb 8th 1681/2.

And final concord and receipt for post fine.

Bar.D.232.233
Deed to make a tenant.  Lease and Release.  Robert, Earl of Scarsdale, Mary, Countess of Scarsdale, and Elizabeth Staunton, widow, of Danbury (co. Essex) to Edmund Harvey of the Inner Temple.  Moiety of Coates Park to be recovered to the use of Elizabeth Staunton, by William Ward of Grays Inn.

June 21st 1682.

Bar.D.468
Mortgage.  Elizabeth Staunton, widow, of Danbury, to William Staunton of London.  Moiety of Coates Park Farm; redeemable for £163.10.0.

June 28th 1682.

Bar.D.234,235,469
Lease and Release.  Elizabeth Staunton, widow, of Danbury to Edward Phiney of Coates Park.  Moiety of Coates Park; for £48 and £500 to Elizabeth Staunton and £152 to William Staunton of London, the mortgage.  
Oct 31st 1682.

Bond for performance.

Bar.D.236,237
Mortage and counterpart.  Deward Phiney of Coates Park and Richard Mason of Newark and Marmaduke Machell, mercer, at the request of Phinney to Elizabeth Staunton of Danbury.  Messuage called Coates Park; redeemable for £590.

Nov 1st 1682.

Bar.D.470
Agreement to levy a fine.  Sir Thomas Piers, George Gilborne, and Elizabeth Stanton with Edward Phiney of Greisthorp.  A moiety of Coats Parke.

1686 (part cut away).

Bar.D.472-474,476

Ease and release and settlement.  Elizabeth Jackson, widow, of Coats Parke to Mathew Powell, clerk of Morton, and John Wingfield of Wirksworth.  The manor of Gresthorpe (co. Nottingham) and the manor houses and named closes and Coats Park Farm, land and beast gates at Ordsall, etc to the use of Marmaduke Machell, mercer, of Alfreton, and other contingent reminders.

July 1st 1695.

Bar.D.479
Copy of the will of Robert Jackson, rector of Addle, (co. York)/  Divides all his property in Normanton on Trent, Weston, and Grassthorp (co. Nottingham) between his daughter, Anne and his son, Joseph.

Jan 4th 1728/9.

Bar.D.477
Lease.  Cyril Jackson of Addle to Robert Milnes, farmer, of Coates Park.  Part of a messuage (rooms specified) and named closes at Coates Park; for 31 years, at £57 rent.
Aug 16th 1740.

Bar.D.478
Assignment of the lease in 477 to John Milward, farmer of Coates Park.

May 20th 1742.

Bar.D.480-484,475
Conveyance.  Cyril Jackson of York and Judeth, his wife, to Robert Charlesworth, clerk, of Birkin.  Farm at Coates Park and named closes; for £1,500.

May 18th 1749.

Final concords, lawyers bills, etc.

Bar.D.485
Assignment of mortgage.  Samuel Boyer of Newcastle-under-Lyme to William Hyatt, grocer, of Newcastle under Lyme acting at the request of Robert Charlesworth, lat of Birkin (co. York), now of Longton Hall, (par. Stocke-on-trent).  Coates Park Farm, etc. redeemable by Charlesworth if he pays Hyatt £600.

Sept 29th 1759.

Bar.D.486
Conveyance.  George Morewood of Alfreton, John Balguy of the Middle Temple and High Woods of Swanicke to the Rev. Robert Charlesworth.  Tithes of the rectory of Alfreton arising from a farm in the tenure of John Milward; for 5/1.

Dec 17th 1783.

Bar.D.250-255
Deeds and papers relating to the fee farm rent of Coates Park, Alfreton, sold to John Henry Barker by Samuel, at the direction of John Gisborne of Darley Dale in 1830.  Abstracts of title, etc.

Bar.D.505
Schedule of deeds relating to Coates Park (mostly those catalogued above).  

1652-1760.

2.  Parish of Hope: Castleton
Bar.D.325
Bargain and sale.  Robert Clayton, miner, of Castleton to Thomas Charlesworth, yeoman, of Castleton.  Three roods and 12 perches with 5 yards for a way called Newgate, being Clayton’s share under a partition of Castleton commons; for £1.10.0.

Oct 1st 1691.

Bar.D.328
Bargain and sale.  Mary Dakin, widow, of Castleton to Thomas Charlesworth of Castleton.  A rood and 30 perches allotted as a share of the commons; for 15/-.

Nov 9th 1691.

Bar.D.384
Bargain and Sale.  Elizabeth Furnisse, widow, of Castleton to Thomas Charlesworth, yeoman.  Three roods and 20 perches allotted to her from the waste of Castleton by writ of partition; for £1.10.0.

Nov 9th 1691.

Bar.D.323
Bargain and Sale.  John Eyre, miner, of Castleton, to Thomas Charlesworth, yeoman, of Castleton.  An acre and three roods and three perches with a way 11 yards in breadth leading from Loosehill Marsh to Mamyates in Castleton for £2.
Nov 9th 1691.

Bar.D.388
Conveyance.  Thomas Frost, miner, of Castleton to Thomas Charlesworth, yeoman, of Castleton.  A piece of land on the Banke, Castleton, for 40/-.

Jan 3rd 1693/4.

Bar.D.326,327
Lease and release.  Samuel Cryer, clerk, of Castleton to Thomas Charlesworth, yeoman, of Castleton.  Piece of land at Loosehill, being a share of the partitioned commons; for £3.10.0. 

Jan 30th 1696/7.

Bar.D.530,331
Lease and release.  William Greaves, shopkeeper, of Castleton to Robert Charlesworth, yeoman, of Castleton.  Piece of land at Over Cliffe; for £4.10.0.
Aug 22nd 1710.

Bar.D.329
Exchange.  Charles Potts of Castleton to Robert Charlesworth, yeoman, of Castleton.  A piece of land in the Over Clyffe, part of the divided commons of Castleton, in exchange for another piece in the Over Clyffe.

August 24th 1710.

Bar.D.389,390
Conveyance by Robert Charlesworth of Castleton to Joseph Wilson, yeoman, of Castleton of land on the Banke at Castleton.
July 7th 1731, June 17th 1731.

Bar.D.391,392,403
Grant of a rent charge of £50 from messuages and lands in Hope and Castleton by Thomas Barker from £1,200 with a deed of defeasance to annul the grant on payment of £1,200 (not executed). August 11th 1796.  Draft release of the charge, John Barker to Thomas Barker.

1814.

Bar.D.848-1,849
Draft deeds for sales of Castleton property and letters, Barker to Pocock, notes, etc on legal matters connected with the Trust, 1841-3.

YORKSHIRE
1.  Parish of Halifax: Ovenden
Bar.D.458

Lease (Release lacking).  Ann Caygill, spinster of Halifax to Cyril Jackson, doctor of Physics of Halifax and Robert Royds, merchant of Halifax.  Messuages etc in Mixendon (township of Ovenden) and named closes there and in Greetland.

July 10th 1761.

B.  SETTLEMENTS
Bar.D.188-190,224
Pre-nuptial settlement (lease, release and counterpart).  John Thorp of Bakewell to Thomas Barker of Bakewell and Robert Charlesworth of St John’s College, Camgbridge.  Milne Half Acre, Rake Croft, Old Hill Pingle and other named closes in Monyash and Flagg and the Cock Pitt Close at Bakewell; to the use of Thorpe for life and to preserve the contingent remainders in consideration of the marriage of Thorp and Elizabeth Charlesworth of Castleton.
Jan 22/23rd, 1758/9.

Bond to indemnify the trustees from the payment of annuities charged on the estate.

Bar.D.713
Pre-nuptial settlement.  Ann Caygill, spinster of Halifax to Cyril Jackson, Doctor of Physic, and Robert Royds Caygill.  Messuage in Mixenden in the township of Ovendon with a barn and fulling mill and the Ive Ing, the Bank Close and other named property and a messuage in Greetland called the Crossland and the Wood Ing, Lower Brieryfield and other named properties; to be held to customary uses and also all her ready money and securities to be held in trust for her intended husband to have the benefit of the interest; in consideration of the marriage of Ann and the Rev. Robert Charlesworth.

July 11th 1761.

Schedule of moneys owning to Ann Caygill endorsed.

Bar.D.671
Agreement.  William Barker of Hackney cousin and heir-at-law of Robert Charlesworth, clerk late of Halifax, with John Barker.  All William’s interest in the estate of Robert Charlesworth to be released to John, for £4,000 in 3 Consols.
Dec 8th 1786.

Bar.D.604

Quitclaim.  William Pollard, fustian cutter, of Manchester and Mary, his wife, formerly Mary Leppingham of Halifax to Thomas Barker.  The state of Robert Charlesworth; for £180 to discharge an annuity under Charlesworth’s will.

Aug 1st 1810.

C. WILLS AND EXECUTORSHIP PAPERS
Bar.D.742
Will of Thomas Charlesworth, yeoman, of Castleton.  Appoints George Ashbourne, yeoman, of Rowsley and Hugh Buxton, yeoman of Ashopp as executors. 

March 16th 1701/2.

Probate Sept 30th 1702.

Bar.D.187
Will of Robert Charlesworth of Castleton.  Requests to his wife and sons, Thomas and Robert, who are appointed executors.
Aug 24th 1735.

Bar.D.596
Bond.  Thomas Charlesworth, merchant, of Hull, executor of Robert Charlesworth to Thomas Barker of Bakewell, steward to the Duke of Rutland in £1,000 to save Barker from all actions etc which might arise from his being a trustee of Robert Charlesworth.

June 4th 1737.

Bar.D.71
Will of Ann Charlesworth, wife of Rev. Robert Charlesworth, clerk, of Halifax.  Messuages, etc in Mixenden at Greetland to her nephew, William Walker, son of William Walker of Crownest (par. Halifax) subject to the payment of an annuity of £200, to Mary Walker, his sister.  Property in Halifax to John Walker, etc.
April 8th 1777.

Bar.D.754,265-269
Two copies of the will of the Rev. Robert Charleworth of Halifax.  All his property (except his lead mines) to his cousins, John Barker of Bakewell and Robert Barker clerk of Youlgreave.

May 27th 1780.

Papers relating to legacies and division of estate, etc.

Bar.D.701
Copy of the will of Robert Charlesworth, clerk, of Halifax.  All his estates to his cousin, John Barker, and William Walker of Crownest (co. York) in trust to pay legacies to the testators cousin, Bridget Dunnage, Suttonia Ashby, Eddowes Bowman of Nantwich, Ann Smith ‘who used to call me pappa’, William Barker of Syrna and William Barker of Hackney.
May 23rd 1786.

Bar.D.746,702-709
Papers relating to the will of the Rev. Robert Charlesworth, receipts for legacies, bonds, bill for the probate costs, drafts of surrenders under the will, etc.

1786-9.

Bar.D.108
Transfer of Shares.  William Walker of Crownest, par. of Halifax, executor of the Rev. Robert Charlesworth, late of Halifax, to John Barker, the other executor of Charlesworth, and residuary legatee.  Thirty-five shares of stock (original value £100 each) in the Calder and Hebble Navigation and part of another share.

July 17th 1787.

Bar.D.756/4

Transfers of stock in the Calder and Hebble Navigation.  John Barker to Sarah Barker and M.M. Middleton, 1818; Sarah Barker and M.M. Middleton to Thomas Alfred Barker.

1832.

D.  ESTATE PAPERS
1.  Parish of Hope
Bar.D.751/1

Bond.  Richard Torre of Castleton to William Eyre, of Highloe, in £50, to abide by the decision of Robert Ashton of Bradway and John Spateman of Rodenooke (co. Derby) in the division of Castleton Commons.  

August 8th, 1693.

Bar.D.751/2

Agreement.  John Mellor, yeoman, of Poynton, par, Presbury (co. Chester) and Sara, his mother, with Thomas Charlesworth, yeoman, of Castleton for payment of the remainder of £85 purchase money for property in Castleton.

April 18th 1693.

Bar.D.777
Agreement of the freeholders of Castleton, Hope, Wormhill, Bradwell and Fairfield to convey their common lands to John Bradshaw of Brampton, William Archer of Highlow, Henry Balguy of Hope, Adam Bagshawe, senior of Wormhill and Richard Bagshawe of Castleton, to hold them in trust for the freeholders who have suffered losses as a result of the devious practices of Thomas Eyre and others, who have encroached on the commons under pretence of false grants.

Jan 23rd 1707/8.

Bar.D.772/2
Survey of estates bought of Mr Ingram in Castleton, Hope and Bradwell, formerly Sir Thomas Gascoigne’s.  

c.1750.
(probably Charlesworth’s).

Bar.D.772/5
Rental of lands at Castleton and Hope.

1763.

Bar.D.751.3-14
Miscellaneous letters and receipts, mostly relating to rents payable to the Duke of Devonshire by Thomas Barker and the Rev. Robert Charlesworth from property in Castleton, 1724-1812.
Bar.D.393
Grant.  John Bagshaw of the Oaks and George Rovinson of Hope to Thomas Barker of Hall End, Bakewell.  Tithes from certain lands in Hope; for £70.7.3.

March 2nd 1801.

Bar.D.772/4
Particulars of exchanges of lands between Barker and Bagshawes predecessors at Castleton 1805.

Bar.D.772/6
Valuation of Thomas Barker’s estates at Hope and Castleton.

1810.

Bar.D.394-400
396

Particulars of John Barker’s estates at Castleton and Hope 1841 with extracts from the declarations of Charles Dakin, John Hall and Robert Gowe.

394
Declaration by Charles Dakin, farmer, of Castleton concerning the identity of lands in Castleton and Hope.  Schedules and plans, one showing strips in Castleton fields.

Feb 28th 1842.

397-8
Schedule and remarks on Dakin’s declaration.

395
Conditions of sale (printed).

399
Draft deed of conveyance for completion after sale.

1842.

400
Miscellanea.

E.  PERSONAL PAPERS OF THE CHARLESWORTH FAMILY
Robert Charlesworth’s executorship for Phoebe Cresswell
Bar.D.737
Copy of the will of Phoebe Cresswell, widow, of the Rev. Jacob Cresswell, late vicar of Hope.  The Hallercroft-head Close at Hope to the vicar and overseers, etc.

March 31st 1727.

Probate April 21st 1751.

Bar.D.738
Receipts, etc for legacies under the will of Phoebe Cresswell, widow, of Castleton paid by her executor, Robert Charlesworth, including one for a scholarship for two poor boys of Hope to be taught by the master of the Free School there.

1731.
Other papers
Bar.D.752
Papers of the Rev. Thomas Jones, chaplain, of St. Saviour’s. Southwark, including an assignment of the profits of his office to John Unwin of the Inner Temple and a bond to the same for payment of an annuity of £25.  

1753.

This annuity was assigned to the rev. Robert Charlesworth of Bakewell in 1755, who began an action for debt against Jones in the same year.

Bar.D,752
Accounts, etc. of the Rev. Charlesworth, including account for the purchase of Malsis Hall estate and a list of mortgages.  Letters from Parker of Leeds to John Barker about Charlesworth’s affairs.

1783-9.

Bar.D.753
Rental of the Revd. H. Charlesworth’s estates, apparently mostly in Castleton.

1785-1791.
From 1787 the rentals are in the names of John Barker and Mrs Barker.

Bar.D.772/1
List of the freehold property belonging to the late Mr Charlesworth at Bakewell, Monyash, Castleton, Coats Park, Youlgreave and Tideswell.

C.1786.

III. Lillie and Marris Families
The Lillies were a Sleaford, Lincolnshire family and their estates were in that county.  In 1701, Mary Lillie married Joseph Marris or Morris of Newark, believed to be a descendant of the Colonel Morris who captured Pontefract Castle during the Civil War.

One of the daughters of this marriage, Sarah, was the wife of Thomas Barker (1709-1754) and her aunt Elizabeth left her lands at Sutterton and Wigtoft to Thomas and Robert, two of the sons of Thomas Barker.

A. MUNIMENTS OF TITLE
1.  Lincolnshire, Raventhorpe
Bar.D.285
Lease (Release lacking).  Aquila Lillie, widow, of Stow to John Lillie of Sleeford, her son and heir.  Moiety of the manor of Raynthorpe, or Revanthorpe (co. Lincoln).

Feb 15th 1694/5.

Bar.D.288
Release of interest.  Joseph Marris, wool draper of Newark-upon-Trent and Catherine Lillie, spinster, of New Sleeford to Mary Lillie of New Sleeford.  All interest in the two moieties of the manor of Raynthorpe mortgaged to Joseph and Catherine by Francis Anderson of Manby (co. Lincoln); for £160.12.0 to each.

May 5th 1712.

2.  Lincolnshire: Sutterton and Wigtoft
Bar.D.289
Mortgage.  John Lillie of New Sleeford, son of Jon Lillie of the same, deceased, to James Brecknock, apothecary, of Holbeach.  All his moiety of a farm at Sutterton and Wigtoft (co. Lincoln).  Redeemable for £105.

Jan 27th 1720/1.

Bar.D.290
Release.  James Breacknock, apothecary, of Holbeach to Mary Quincey, spinster, of Hillinborough (co. Lincoln) and Frances Quincy, spinster of the same at the request of John Lillie.  Farm and lands in Sutterton described in an attached schedule; for £237.

June 2nd 1724.

Bar.D.292
Mortgage.  John Lillie of Newark-upon-Trent and Elizabeth Lillie, spinster, of Newark to Grace Pregion, spinster, of the City of Lincoln.  A Close of pasture in Fyshmore End, Sutterton and a close in Wigtoft, redeemable for £52.10.0. 

April 12th 1728.

Bar.D.293
Assignment of mortgage.  John Kent, brasier, of Lincoln and Grace, his wife, late Grace Prigeon at the request of John Lillie, spinster, to Samuel Arnal, Woolcombe, of New Sleford.  A close at Fishmore end and a close at Wigtoft, etc, mortgaged by John and Elizabeth Lillie; for £50.

May 20th, 1732.

Bar.D.291
Lease.  William Anthony of Bakewell on behalf of John barker to John Cabourn, grazier, of Strugs Hill, Sutterton (co. Lincoln).  A close containing seven roods and the Winter Close,  a close of arable in the newly enclosed fen of Sutteron, and other specified properties; for 21 years at £24 rent and £5 for every acre ploughed up.

May 12th 1790.

B.  SETTLEMENTS
Bar.D.286,287

Pre-nuptial settlement (lease and release).  Mary Lillie, the elder, widow of John Lillie of New Sleford to Richard Greene of Dunsby (co. Lincoln) and Robert Marris, tanner, of Newark-upon-Trent.  A moiety of messuages and closes in Rainthorp to uses, in consideration of the marriage of Joseph Marris, woollen draper, of Newark and Mary Lillie, spinster.
Oct 2nd 1701.

Bar.D.570
Pre-nuptial settlement.  Robert Marris, woollen draper, of Newark to Richard Greene of Dunsby (co. Lincoln) and Robert Marris of Newark , nephew of Robert.  A house in Newark market place (bounds given) to be held to the use of Joseph Marris, son of Roert and his intended wife Mary, daughter of John Lillie, late of New Sleaford (co. Lincoln) and their heirs, etc.

Oct 2nd 1701.

Bar.D.592
Bond. Joseph Marris, woollen draper, of Newark to Robert Marris, alderman of Newark, for payment of £100 under the marriage settlement of Joseph and Mary Lillie.

March 20th 1702/3.

C.   WILLS AND EXECUTORSHIP PAPERS
Bar.D.681
Copy of the will of Robert Marriss, woollen draper, of Newark.

Aug 27th 1715.

Bar.D.696
Probate copy of the will of Elizabeth Morris, spinster, of Bakewell.  £100 to her niece, Mary, wife of Robert Buckbury of Billingsborough (co. Lincoln).  The residue of her estate to Sarah Barker, her sister, who is appointed executrix.

Oct 18th 1764.

Probate April 24th 1769.

Bar.D.695
Copy of the will of Elizabeth Lillie, spinster, of Bakewell.  All her lands, etc at Sutterton and Wigtoft (co. Lincoln) to Thomas Barker, Lieutenant R.N. and Robert Barker, Vicar of Youlgreave.  The £200 owed to her by John Barker is bequeathed to him.  Thomas and Robert appointed executors.
June 22nd 1775.

D.  PAPERS RELATING TO THE LILLIE ESTATES
Bar.D.786/1,2

Note on the Lillies’ title to the Willingham (co. Lincoln) estates.

1675-1738.

Lawyers opinion on the title to the Wigtoft estates.

1724.

Bar.D.786/4
Copy of surrender and admission in the manor of Bewsolas in Fosdike.  Francis, wife of George Winter surrenders 3 roods of pasture on Bradmore in Sutterton to John Lilley for 7/1.  Fine 1/3.

Oct 20th 1682.

Bar.D.786/3
Copy of the will of John Green of Dunsby (co Lincoln).  Bequests to his daughter Mary Lilly and lands at Sutterton to his grandchild, John Lillie.

Aug 4th 1692.

Bar.D.786/7

Articles of agreement.  Robert Barker, clerk, of Youlgreave with John Barker of Bakewell.  For purchase of the moiety of estates in Sutterton and Wigtoft which descended to Robert, under the will of Elizabeth Lillie; for £350.

Bar.D.787
Bill (printed) for enclosing the fens etc at Sutterton (co. Lincoln).

1772.

IV  SCHOLLER AND TWIGG FAMILIES
The Scholler family of Rowsley acquired, by marriage and purchase, estates in Bakewell from the Twigg family and in the parish of Ecclesfield from the Hawkesworths.  The Twigg connection arose from the marriage of Ruth Scholler and John Twigg of Bakewell in 1683.  Robert Scholler (d.1748) married Elizabeth Calvert and his daughter Elizabeth married Godfrey Watkinson of Brampton.  Their daughter Jane was the wife of John Barker (1731-1795) and subsequently of John Beaumont of Greenwich.
A.  MUNIMENTS OF TITLE
DERBYSHIRE

1.  Parish of Bakewell: Bakewell
Bar.D.30a,b

Final Concords (a pair).  Latin.  Humfrey Twigge and William Redfern v. William Twigge.  Messuage etc. in Bakewell for £40.  Michelmas 1585.

Bar.D.507
Final Concord.  Latin.  Thomas Hayward and Edward Henshawe, plaintiffs, William Twigg and Humfrey Twigg, deforceants.  A messuage, garden, etc. in Bakewell.  For £100.

Hilary 1617/18.

Bar.D.508
Quitclaim.  Edward Twigge, cutler of Darnall to John Twigge, yeoman of Bakewell, his brother.  All his claims to a messuage and lands in Bakewell for £80 from William Twigge, father of Edward and John.

April 21st 1620.

Bar.D.438
Copy of the will of John Twigge, yeoman, of Bakewell.  Thirteen beastgates in Catcliffe, Bakewell, to his wife, Ruth, also the Dagnall Close, etc.  Appoints Ruth as executrix.

April 12th 1690.

Probate Oct 16th 1690.

Bar.D.429
Conveyance.  Ruth Twigg, widow and executrix, of John Twigg, yeoman, of Bakewell to John Grammer, mercer, of Bakewell.  Thirteen beast gates in the Catcliffe pasture, Bakewell; for £180.

April 6th 1691.

Bar.D.423,571-2,249
Conveyance (two parts) and agreement to levy a fine.  Edward Buxton, yeoman of Bakewell and Ruth, his wife, to Thomas Goodwin, yeoman, of Ashford and Edward Heathcot, yeoman, of Bubnell.  The Dagnall Close and part of the Greenhill Meadowe and lands in Bakewell Fields specified, formerly belonging to John Twigg, Ruth’s late husband; to be held to uses for settling the same as Ruth’s inheritance.

Jan 1st 1706/7.

Fine dated Feb 1706/7.

Bar.D.520,573

Deed to declare uses of a fine and counterpart of Ruth Buxton, wife of Edward Buxton of Bakewell, declares that a fine levied of the Dagnall Close, Greenhill Meadow, an half acre in Stanidgefield, a rood on the Doghillock Furlong, etc, are to be held to the use of Robert Scholler of Rowsley provided he pays £4 p.a. out of the profits to his sister Ruth.

March 6th 1715/14.

YORKSHIRE
1. Parish of Ecclesfield; Nether House and Storrs
Bar.D.16
Copies of Surrenders and Admissions in the Sheffield Manor Court of land at Dungworth and Storrs the property of the Rawson family.

Nov. 26th 1476 - March 2nd 1591.

Bar.D.7
Copy of Court Roll.  Latin.  Sheffield.  Court Baron of Henry, Marquis of Dorchester, Henry, Earl of Peterborough and Sir Robert Stapleton.  Recording the Surrender and Admission of John Priest to property at Dungworth and a recovery, Thomas Gregory and John Priest, Richard Rawson vouched to warranty, of property at Dungworth and Stores.

Sept 11th 1664.

Bar.D.8,9,12
Declaration of trust.  Richard Rawson, yeoman, of Hadfield House par. of Ecclesfield with John Shawe, the elder, clerk of Rotherham and John Shawe, the younger.  Copyhold messuage at Storres, commonly called Nether House with named closes declared to be held to Shawe’s use; for £424.6.8.

May 31st 1666.
Bond for performance.

Surrender and admission dated July 12th 1666.

Bar.D.408
Deed of covenant.  John Hoyland, yeoman, of Storres (chapelry of Bradfield) to John Shawe, clerk of Rotherham and John Shawe.  Two closes called the Okes and the Netherfield, abutting on the east on the town green of Storres, for £40, surrendered in Sheffield manor court.

Sept 27th 1666.

Bar.D.10
Copy of Surrender and Admission.  Latin.  Sheffield.  Court Baron of Henry, Marquis of Dorchester, Henry, Earl of Peterborough, and Sir Robert Stapleton.  John Hoyland to John Shawe.  Closes at Storres.

Aug 29th 1671.

Bar.D.11
Copy of Court Roll.  Latin.  Sheffield.  Court Baron of Henry, Duke of Norfolk.  Surrender and Admission and Recovery of Netherhouse, etc by Cornelius Dale against John Calvert.  Ruth Dale vouched to warranty.

May 24th 1688.

Bar.D.630
Agreement.  Ruth Dale, widow of George Dale of Monyash, with Joseph Scholler, yeoman, of Chappel Towne.  The Nether House, at Bradfield, eight closes and the Oakes and Nether Field at Storrs, to be conveyed to Scholler for £430.  
Oct 4th 1688.

Bar.D.15
Copy Surrender and Admissions.  Latin.  Sheffield.  View of frankpledge and Court Baron of Henry, Duke of Sheffield.  Both Dale surrenders to Joseph SchollerNetherhouse at Storrs and he surrenders it to the use of himself and Mary, his wife, and their heirs.

Oct 4th 1688.

Bar.D.13
Lease for year.  John Hawksworth of Nether Denby (par. of Penistone) to Robert Schooler of Rowley (co. Derby) and Benjamin Slateburn of Aldermanshead (par. Penistone).  Messuage and named closes at Nether Denby.

June 15th 1709.

Parish of Ecclesfield: Shiregreen and Wincobank
Bar.D.138
Copy Surrender and Admission (as a mortgage).  Latin.  Sheffield.  Court Baron of Henry, Duke of Norfolk.  William Priest, yeoman, of Shiregreen, Ephraim Nicholls, cutler and Joshua Bayes of the same to Francis Stringer of Sutton (co. Nottingham).  Mabb Crofts, Gunnell Sicke, Hill Wife Field, How Storth, The Tofts, redeemable for £100.  Fine 6/-.

Sept 28th 1693.

Bar.D.141
Inquisition.  Latin.  Sheffield.  View of Frank Pledge and Great Court Baron of Henry, Duke of Norfolk.  Inquisition on William Priest, who died seized of two messuages and 1 ½ bovate at Wincobank.  Henry Priest, his brother is the next heir.  Fine 6/-.

Oct 3rd 1695.

Bar.D.147

Copy of the will of Henry Priest, yeoman, of Upper Shiregreen.  All his copyhold property at Wincobank to his mother, Mary and, after her death, to his sister, Mary, the wife of Richard Hawkesworth.  His mother named as executor.

Feb 28th 1995/6.

Bar.D.140
Copy Surrender and Admission.  Latin.  Sheffield.  Court Baron of Henry, duke of Norfolk.  Henry Priest, yeoman, of Shiregreen to the uses of his will.  Two messuages and one bovate and a half of land at Wincobank.

March 28th 1695.

(recte 1696).

Bar.D.136
Copy Surrender and Admission.  Latin.  Sheffield.  Court Baron of Henry, Duke of Norfolk.  Francis Stringer of Sutton (co. Nottingahm) to Mary Priest, mother and executor of Henry Priest.  The Mabcrofts, the Guinellsick, the Hillwife Field, the Howstorth, and the Tofts, at Shiregreen.  Fine 6/-.

Aug 26th 1697.

Bar.D.133

Inquisition.  Latin.  Sheffield.  View of Frankspledge and Great Court Baron of Thomas, Duke of Norfolk.  Inquisition on Henry Priest, yeoman, of Shiregreen who held two messuages at Wincobank rent 11/5, which he devised by will to Adam Hawkesworth, who is admitted.  Fine 11/5.   

March 28th 1706.

Bar.D.81
Copy Recovery and Admission.  Latin.  Sheffield.  Court Baron of Thomas, Duke of Norfolk.  Richard Hawkesworth of Broard Oake, par. of Peniston, son of Richard Hawkesworth of Shiregreen, and Adam Hawkesworth, his brother, devisee of Henry Priest, to Thomas Greaves, shoemaker, of Sheffield.  Two cottages and a bovate and a half at Wincobank.  John King acting as demandant in the recovery.  Fine 6/-.

Dec 28th 1710.

Bar.D.145
Surrender and admission.  Latin.  Sheffield.  Court Baron of Thomas Duke of Norfolk.  Adam Hawkesworth of Shiregreen, to Samuel Baine of Thrybergh.  Property at Wincobank.
Jan 16th 1710/11.

Bar.D.150
Bond.  Latin and English.  Adam Hawkesworth of Shiregreen to Samuel Baine, clerk, of Thrybergh in £300, for payment of £150 to redeem lands mortgaged at Wincobank.

Jan 18th 1710/11.

Bar.D.146

Bond.  Latin and English.  Adam Hawkesworth of Shiregreen to Samuel Baine, clerk, of Thrybergh, in £1,000 for the payment of £500 and the suffering of a recovery of property at Wincobank.

May 30th 1712.

Bar.D.144
Copy of Surrender and Admission as a mortgage.  Latin.  Sheffield.  Court Baron of Thomas, Duke of Norfolk.  Adam Hawkesworth to Samuel Baine.  Land at Wincobank.  Redeemable for £150.

June 5th 1712.

Bar.D.143

Copy Surrender and Admission as a mortgage.  Latin.  Sheffield.  Court Baron of Thomas, Duke of Norfolk.  Adam Hawkesworth of Shiregreen to John Browne.  All his property at Wincobank formerly belonging to his uncle, Henry Priest.  Redeemable for £230.

Feb 4th 1713/14.

Bar.D.139
Copy Surrender and Admission.  Latin.  Sheffield.  Court Baron of Thomas, Duke of Norfolk.  Adam Hawkesworth of Shiregreen, Jonas Hawksworth, one of his brothers, Samuel Baine, clerk, of Thrybergh and John Browne of Sheffield to Robert Scholler of Rowsley.  Bovate and a half of land at Wincobank.  Fine 6d.

July 6th 1716.
Bar.D.142,409
Lease and release.  Adam Hawkesworth of Ecclesfield and Jonas Hawkesworth, surgeon, of Wakefield to Robert Scholler of Rowsley.  Five roods etc at Wincobank; for £40.  

July 10th/11th 1716.

Bar.D.83

Agreement.  Adam Hawksworth of Shiregreen to Robert Scholler of Rowesley.  Copyhold land at Wincobank to be redeemable for £1200, plus interest paid within 7 years.

July 11th 1716.

Bar.D.152
Receipts, bonds and agreements between Robert Schooler and Adam Hawkesworth relating to the Shiregreen property.

1716.

(7 papers)

Bar.D.79a,b
Agreement to payment and counterpart.  Robert Scholler of Rowesley to Adam Hawksworth of Shiregreen.  Two messuages and an oxgang and a half at Wincobank Shire, or Shiregreen; for 7 years at £5 rent surrendered in the Manor Court.

Jan 22nd 1716/17.

Bar.D.84
Release of reversion.  Adam Hawksworth, farmer, of Shiregreen to Robert Scholler of Rowesley.  All rights to his copyhold land at Shiregreen, which were surrendered to Scholler with a clause for redemption; for £33.16.0.
Feb 18th 1718

Bar.D.85
Agreement.  Robert Scholler of Rowesley to John Balmforther, senior, yeoman of Cudworth and John Balmforth, junior, of the same.  Copyhold messuage, lands, etc at Shiregreen and Wincobank surrendered for 21 years at £50 rent; covenants from leases.

May 21st 1719.

Bar.D.156
Schedule of deeds relating to property at Shiregreen.

1693-1736.

Bar.D.80
Lease.  Robert Scholler of Rowsley to John Bamforth, chandler, of Shiregreen.  Messuage at Shiregreen, the Two Mapple Crofts, the Two Hill Wife Fields, two little tenaments etc; for 21 years at £50.

Oct 19th 1737.

Bar.D.148
Agreement.  Elizabeth Scholler, widow of Robert Scholler of Rowsley; Godfrey Watkinson of Brampton Moor and Elizabeth, his wife, a daughter of Robert Scholler, and John Lees, merchant, of Manchester on behalf of Thomas Lees, his only son by Ruth, his late wife, who was a daughter of Robert Scholler, with John Bamforth, chandler, of Shiregreen.  All their customary land at Wincobank and Shiregreen to be leased for 21 years at £50 rent.

Dec 28th 1756.

Bar.D.606
Surrender and Admission.  Manor of Sheffield.  Count Baron of Edward, Duke of Norfolk.  Michael Buxton, mercer, of the City of London, eldest son and heir of Edward Buxton of Bakewell surrenders a copyhold messuage at Shiregreen to Thomas Lees, son of John Lees merchant and Ruth, his wife, daughter of Robert Scholler.

Jan 10th 1766.

Bar.D.607
Surrender and admission and action of ejectment.  Thomas Bourne and Elizabeth, his wife, to Joseph Matthewman a moiety of a messuage, etc. at Shiregreen to hold for the purpose of an ejectment for the benefit of Elizabeth Bourne.

Jan 10th 1766.

Bar.D.82
Presentment.  Latin.  Sheffield.  Court Baron of Edward, Duke of Norfolk.  Thomas Lee, son of John Lees, merchant, by Ruth, his wife, daughter, of Robert Scholler has surrendered to John Barker of Bakewell and Jane, his wife, to the uses of their wills; a messuage at Shiregreen, the Well Croft, Upper field, Long Field, Slate Delph, Upper Stoney Lands, Little Stoney Lands, and other named closes in Ecclesfield.  Find 3/-.  March 25th 1773.  With Parker’s opinion on the title.

Sept 12th 1776.

Bar.D.639
Agreement.  Thomas Bourn of Rowsley and John Barker of Bakewell with Mary Bamforth of Shiregreen, Sheffield.  A copyhold messuage and appurtenances at Wincobank, Shiregreen to be surrendered to Mary for £40 annual rent.

Sept 30th 1780.

Bar.D.149
Agreement.  Thomas Roberts, husbandman, of Shiregreen with Mary Bamforth, widow, of the same.  For the maintenance of the joint tenure of lands at Shiregreen, leased for 21 years to Robert and Mary Bamforth by Thomas Bourne and John Barker, on the condition of certain covenants.  Mary to pay the rent (not stated).

Jan 1st 1795.

3.  Parish of Silkstone: Dodworth
The descent of this property is uncertain but it appears to have passed to the Scholler family before becoming part of the Barker estates.  This was probably on account of the links between the Crawshaw and Calvert families.  (see section VII, Calvert).

Bar.D.405
Exemplification of a final concord.  Latin.  Richard Crawshawe plaintiff, Robert Robinson and Margaret his wife, deforceants, 20 acres, etc, 

Jan 23rd 1606/7.

Bar.D.17
Bargain and Sale.  Robert Robinson of Manchester and his wife, Margaret, daughter of Raph Lowe, late of Stockport to Richard Crawshawe, yeoman, of Dodworth.  Gill Roide, Bothom & Roid for £136.13.4.

Oct 8th 1607.

Bar.D.18

Exemplification of a recovery.  Latin.  Henry Crawshawe and Richard Oxley v Richard Crawshawe.  Twenty acres, etc in Dodworth.  Robert Robinson and his wife, Margaret, vouched to warranty.

June 15th 1608.

Bar.D.23
Licence to alienate.   Latin.  Robert Robinson and Margaret, his wife, giving permission to convey 20 acres etc in Dodsworth to Richard Crawshawe, for 13/8. 
Oct 1st 1608.

Bar.D.2
Copy of Court Roll.  Latin and English.  Court Roll of the Great Court of Barnsley cum Dodworth.  Sir Francis Wortley, steward.

Oct 19th 1611.

Records the deposition of witnesses in a dispute concerning the way to a close called Bothom royd.

Bar.D.19

Lease.  Richard Hobson, the younger, tanner, of Dodworth to Thomas Crawshawe, husbandman.  Bothome Roide in Dodworth, for 2,000 years at 2d rent; for £10.

Oct 14th 1613.

Bar.D.21
Bargain and Sale.  Percival Hobson, yeoman, Thomas Copley, yeoman, George Wood, yeoman, of Monkbretton, Richard Oxley, yeoman of Dodworth, Henry Potter, chapman, of Pilley and John Langley, yeoman, of Hudhill to Richard Crawshawe, yeoman, of Dodworth.  A moiety of Bothome Inge, Little Johan Roide, etc for £25.

June 13th 1615.

Bar.D.20
Bargain and sale.  Percivall Hobson, yeoman, of Dodworth, Thomas Copley, yeoman, of Tearshill, George Wood, yeoman, of Monkbretton, Richard Oxley, yeoman, of Dodworth, Henry Potter, chapman, of Pilley and John Langley, yeoman, of Hudhill to John Clarke, yeoman, of Over Heyland.  Kirklands in Dodworth for £8.6.8.

June 27th 1615.

Bar.D.1a,b
Bargain and Sale.  John Clarke, the elder, yeoman, of Over Hoyland and John Clarke, his son, to Percival Hobson, yeoman, of Dodworth.  Longe Close, Ould Close and The Shough at Dodworth; for £102.

Jan 14th 1616/17.

Bond for performance.

Bar.D.22,406
Bargain and sale.  (and counterpart)  John Clarke, the elder, yeoman, of Over Hoyland and John Clarke, his son, to Richard Crawshawe, yeoman of Dodworth.  A messuage and the Longe Croft and four selions called Winterlees (bounds given) in Dodworth; for £52.6.8.
Jan 14th 1616/17.

Bar.D.14
Bargain and Sale.  Thomas Hanson of Thurgoland to Richard Crawshaw, yeoman, of Dodworth.  A tenement etc in Dodworth, at 8d rent; for £4.

Aug 20th 1618.

Bar.D.5
Grant of annuity.  Richard Crawshaw, yeoman, of Dodworth to John Popplewell, miller of Thunnerclif Grange.  An annuity of £10 from Crawshaw’s house, the Longe Crofte and Little Winter Lee, the Gill Royd, Bothom Royd etc. for £100.  June 20th 1623.

Bar.D.4
Bargain and Sale.  Richard Crawshaw, yeoman, of Owslethwet to Lionel Hill, tailor, of Dodworth.  Kirke Landes in Dodworth; for £48.

March 16th 1626/7.

Bar.D.6

Assignment of a lease.  Richard Crawshaw the elder, of Uslethwait to Richard, his son.  Bothom Royd Inge, for the remainder of a term of 2,000 years from Richard Hobson, tanner of Dodworth at 2d rent.
April 28th 1632.
Bar.D.407
Pre-nuptial settlement.  Richard Crawshawe, the elder, yeoman, of Uslethwayt (par. Worsbrough) to Edward Armitage of Kersforthill (par. Barnsley) and John Bright, yeoman, of Brendcliff Edge, Sheffield,  Messuage, cottage, Botham Inge, Little Johan Roide etc in Dodworth.  To be held to stated uses in consideration of the marriage of Richard Crawshaw, the younger, and Elizabeth Revell, daughter of Thomas Revell, daughter of Thomas Revell, yeoman, of Heeley, deceased.
April 28th 1632.

B.  WILLS AND EXECUTORSHIP PAPERS
Bar.D.435
Will of William Twigge, yeoman, of Bakewell.  His land is settled on his younger son, John, if his eldest son, Edward, cutler of Sheffield, leaves him undisturbed, he receives 20 nobles.  Other bequests to his daughter, Margaret Sterndale, Bakewell Church, servants, etc.  John Twigge to be executor assisted by John Rowlandson, clerk , and Richard Robberts, yeoman, of Bakewell.

July 18th 1624.
Probate Nov. 27th 1632.

Bar.D.401,402,567
Pre-nuptial settlement (klease and release) and copy.  John Twigge, the elder, yeoman, of Bakewell and John Twigge, the younger, yeoman, of the same, to Robert Scholler, yeoman, of Rowlsey and Jonathan Twigge, clerk, of Edensor.  A messuage in Bakewell and the Heald Close abutting on the Bakewell to Monyash road; the Greenhill Hole Close, on the Bakewell-Ashford road; a moiety of the Greenhill meadow and other named property.  To be held to the use of John Twigg and Ruth Scholler and their heirs, except for a life interest in the little parlour of the messuage, six beast gates, Catcliff pastures, etc of John Twigge the elder; Jonathan Twigge, to preserve the contingent remainders; and to other uses, in consideration of the marriage of John Twigg and Ruther Scholler and for £200. 

June 1st/2nd 1683.

Bar.D.416
Lease.  John Twigg, yeoman, of Bakewell to Robert Scholler of Rowseley, servant to John, Earl of Rutland.  The little parlour in Twigg’s houses, six cow gates on Carcliffe and the Heald Close, for 99 years from Twigg’s death, in trust for Ruth, his wife; for 10/-.

July 15th 1689.

Bar.D.154
Release of legacy.  James Pashley, late of Maltby, now of Leeds to Samuel Grover of Maltby.  A sum of £60 bequeathed to Pashley’s wife, Ellen formerly Hawkesworth, by Henry Priest, in consideration of Grover saving Pashley harmless from the charges involved in a Chancery case with Major Wilson of Leeds.

Jan 11th 1714/15.

(John Hawkesworth was the son-in-law of Mary Scholler).

Bar.D.558,647
Copies of the will and probate of Mary Scholar, widow of Rowesley, but now living with her son-in-law John Hawkesworth of Nether Denby, parish of Penistone.  Bequests to John and his wife, Mary, and to Thomas Walter, her son-in-law, and Robert Scholar, her son, who is appointed executor.

April 17th 1757.
Probate June 21st 1740.

Bar.D.749
Receipts for legacies to Robert Schooler as executor of Mary Scholler and George Calvert.
1733-8.

Bar.D.767/4
Copy of the will of Robert Scholler.  All his lead mines to his wife, Elizabeth.  All his property at Skinnathorpe and Storrs, Sheffield and Asford, co. Derby to his wife, his daughter Elizabeth Watkinson and his sons-in-law, Godfrey Watkinson of Brampton Moor and John Lees, merchant, of Manchester in trust for stated uses.
Nov. 22nd 1746.

Probate Oct. 17th, 1748.

(Extracts from this will are at Bar.D.619).

Bar.D.677
Copy of the will of Elizabeth Schooler, widow of Rowsley.  Bequest to Thomas Lees, her grandson, Dorothy Combault, her niece and Jane Sleigh, her niece.  All her lead mines, etc. she leaves to her daughter Mrs Watkinson and the house at Rowsley near the smelting mill.

July 28th, 1764.

C.  MISCELLANEOUS ESTATE AND PERSONAL PAPERS
Bar.D.655
Grant of a pew.  Adam Hawkesworth of Shiregreeen to Robert Scholler of Rowsley.  A pew in Ecclesfield parish church, the back of which adjoins the west end of the church and the east the curchwarden’s seat; a pew in the middle alley and one seat in the Little Fort, near the ringing floor; for 5/- and other considerations.

July 11th, 1716.

Bar.D.725/4
Rental of lands in Barnsley, rents due to Robert Scholler.

1723.

Bar.D.725/4-11
Letters to Robert Scholler about his trusteeship for Calvert, 1720-1 and on concenring stocks and South Sea investments.

1727.

Bar.D.757/2

Robert Scholler’s estate accounts with Dorothy Baker. 
1755-6.
Bar.D.757/1
List of births, marriages, and deaths of the Scholler family.

1723-1745.

V.  THORPE FAMILY
The connection of this family with the Barkers is not clear, but it probably derived from the fact that the Revd. Robert Charlesworth acted as executor for Elizabeth, widow of John Thorpe.  The Monyash estates appear to have been purchased at some date after 1742.

A.  MUNIMENTS OF TITLE
DERBYSHIRE

1.  Monyash and Flagg
(a few draft deeds and miscellaneous papers relating to these estates after they had passed to the Barkers have been included here).

Bar.D.354,355
Mortgage.  (Lease and release).  Ruth Dale, widow of George Dale of Monyash and John Dale, her son, to Francis Bunting of Wirksworth.  The Rake End House Farm and the Wetlands, Holes, etc, adjoining in Monyash; redeemable on payment of £6 and £206.

May 22nd/23rd, 1693.

Bar.D.560

Bargain and Sale.  James Nealor of Moniashe to George Goodwin, yeoman, of Moniashe.  Hole Close and Hole Pingle, and other named closes in Moniashe; for £55.

Feb. 12th, 1693/4.

Bar.D.361,367
Mortgage (lease and release).  Sir Phillip Gell of Hopton, William Eyre of Holme and Thomas Bagshawe of Bakewell, executors of Francis Bunting of Wirksworth and Tristram Ridgeway of Wirksworth, with the consent of Ruth and John Dale, to John Alsope, yeoman, of Ingestree.  Rake End House Farm, Monyash, redeemable by Ruth and John Dale for £211.

April 22/23rd, 1698.

Bar.D.356
Mortgage.  Ruth Dale, widow of George Dale and John Dale, her son, to John Alsope, yeoman, of Ingestree, co. Stafford.  The Two Smithlands and other closes (named) in Monyash.  Redeemable, for 55/-.

April 23rd, 1698.

Bar.D.362
Grant in trust.  John Alsopp, yeoman, of Ingestry to John Norman, yeoman, of Fenny Bentley.  Ruth and John Dale of Monyash and John Hereford of Ashbourne also being parties.  Farm and the Smith Lands, etc. at Monyash, to wait upon the inheritance; for £330.10.0.

April 25th, 1710.

Bar.D.357
Conveyance.  Ruth Dale, widow, of George Dale of Monyash and John Dale, her son to John Norman, yeoman, of Fenny Bentley.  Shaws House in Monyash and the Wett Lands Pingle, the Hole Close and other named properties, for £368.

April 26th, 1701.

Bar.D.609
Bond.  Henry Carder, yeoman, of Monyash to William Greatrix, yeoman, of Monyash in £80 for performance.

Dec. 1st, 1701.

Bar.D.366
Conveyance.  Henry Carder, yeoman, of Monyash to William Greatrix, yeoman, of Monyash.  Outer Highlow Furlong Peece; for £40.10.0.

Dec. 8th, 1701.
Bar.D.365
Assignment of mortgage.  John Calvert of Beeley, at the direction of Henry Carder, yeoman, of Monyash, to William Gretrix, yeoman, of Monyash.  The Outer Highlow Furlong Peeces and the Gall in Nithings; for £31.16.0.

Dec. 22nd, 1701.

Bar.D.363,364
Conveyance.  William Gretrix, yeoman of Carsington to John Thorpe, mason, of Bakewell.  The Outerhighlow Furlong end appurtenances; for £42.15.0.

May 7th, 1702.

With fine.

Bar.D.368
Agreement to levy a fine and lead uses.  Robert Middleton, mercer, of Chappell in Le Pryth and Mary, his wife, widow of William Brock of Shallcross, with William Bagshawe of Ford and Arnold Kirke, yeoman, of Martin Side (par, Chapel) and John Shallcross of Shallcross.  All the property in Monyash and Flagg which descended to Mary from Richard and James Naylor.  To be held to the use of Shallcross until payment has been made of £627 and then to Robert Middleton and his heirs. 
Sept. 4th, 1711.

Bar.D.32
Final Concord.  Latin.  William Bagshawe and Arnold Kirke v. Robert Middleton and Mary his  wife.  Two messuages, 20 acres of land, etc. in Monyash and Flagg for £100.
Nov. 1711.
Bar.D.358,359
Lease and release.  John Shallcrosse of Shallcrosse, Robert Middleton, mercer, of Chappell en le Fryth and Mary, his wife, widow of William Brock and daughter of James Nealor to John Thorpe, stone cutter of Bakewell.  The Milne Half Acre, the Rake Croft, the Old Hill Pingle, Highlow Furlong and other named property in Monyash; for £280.
March 19/20th, 1711/12.

Bar.D.370,371
Lease and Release.  Daniel Hayes, yeoman, of Bramton and Sarah, his wife, to Edward Brocksopp, butcher of Hasland.  Farm at Flagg and the Backside, New Close, Long acres and other named closes; for £380.

March 28th/29th, 1722.

Bar.D.369
Conveyance.  Thomas Growe, clerk, of Ashford and Mary, his wife, executrix of William Bossley, her former husband and executor of his father, William Bossley, to Robert Thorpe, tailor, of Wirksworth, John Thorpe, stonecutter, of Bakewell also being a party.  Long Acres, Shortt Flatts, etc, in Flagg and the Ditch Head Close at Monyash; for £320.  
June 24th , 1725.

Bar.D.767/5
Deed to declare uses.  Henry Bourne, bachelor in physic, of Spittle and Sarah, his wife, to Obadiah Bourne, rector of Ashover and Godfrey Webster, tanner of Chesterfield.  Lands, etc. in Monyash, Stretton, Peashall, etc.

Jan. 21st, 1726/7.

Bar.D.372,375
Lease and Release.  Hugh Goodwin, yeoman, of Knollow (par. Bakewell), Hannah, his wife, and George Wilkson, schoolmaster, of Prescliffe and Elizabeth, his wife, daughter and devisee of George Goodwin, yeoman, of Monyash to John Thorpe, marble-cutter of Bakewell.  Wetlands.  Two Hole Closes, and Gill Hill Pingle in Monyash; £100.  

April 11/12th, 1737.

Bar.D.374
Release.  William Bossley, mercer, son of William Bossley, apothecary, of Bakewell, deceased, to John Thorpe, tanner, of Bakewell, son of Robert Thorpe, tailor, late of Wirksworth, deceased.  Long Acres, Short Flatts, etc. in Flagg and Ditch Head Closes at Monyash, originally conveyed to Robert Thorpe; for 5/-.

April 30th, 1738.

Bar.D.504
Lease.  (Release lacking.)  Robert Scholler of Rowesley, executor of the will of Dorothy Calvert of Rowseley, executor of John Calvert, late of Heeley to Thomas Mathews, mercer, of Tutbury at the request of Henry Carder, yeoman, of Tissington and Thomas Carder, miner, of Winster).   Farm in Monyash, the Hall Yard. Long Croft, etc.
May 29th, 1742.

Bar.D.850
Draft deeds, abstracts of title, letters, announcements of sale, etc. relating to the Mill Hay and other properties sold in Monyash and Flagg.
1855.

With a copy of the will of Edward Brocksopp, butcher, of Hasland, 1752.

2. Various Places
Bar.D.600

Final Concord.  Latin.  Thomas North and Antony Stafford, plaintiffs; William Thorpe and Margaret, his wife, Robert Connell, senior, Ann, his wife and Robert Connell, junior, and Margaret, his wife, deforceants.  Two messuages, etc. in Bakewell, Glossop, Mellor Bowman Middlecale and Whitehamell; for £60.

March 26th, 1672.

LANCASHIRE

1.  Astley
Bar.D.280,282
Assignment of mortgage and counterpart.  Rev. Robert Charlesworth, clerk, of Halifax, administrator, of Elizabeth Thorpe, widow, who was executrix of John Thorpe, to Samuel Wright, the younger, of Manchester acting on behalf of Joseph Hague of Manchester.  Peel Hall at Astley, Lancashire and named closes, etc. originally mortgaged by Thomas Frogatt of Manchester, to John Thorpe; for £1,461.18.10.  

May 18th, 1773.

5.  WILLS AND EXECUTORSHIP PAPERS
Bar.D.554
Copy of will of Matthew Norman, yeoman, of Bakewell.  Messuage in Monyash called Shaw’s House to John Thorpe, stone cutter of Bakewell, with whom Norman now eats, and the Wett Lands Pingle, Vote Closes, etc., belonging to it.  Thorpe appointed executor.

Feb. 9th, 1717/18.

Bar.D.382
Certificate that Robert Thorpe, yeoman, of Wirksworth has taken the faith of Allegiance at the Bakewell Quarter Sessions.

July 17th, 1725.

Bar.D.680
Quitclaim.  Anne Thorpe, spinster, of Wirksworth to her brother, John Thorpe.  All claims to a legacy from her father, Robert,

June 22nd, 1737.

Bar.D.270-71
Will of Sarah Thorpe, spinster, of Bakewell.  A messuage to Horsecroft Lane to Bakewell and closes in Elton, etc. to her nephew, Mathew Thorpe. John Thorpe of Bakewell to be executors.

June 27th, 1767.

With covering letter from R. Charlesworth to John Thorp.
Bar.D.516,198
Two copies of the will of John Thorpe of Bakewell.  All his mines and estates to his wife, Elizabeth, who is appointed executor. 

Dec. 8th 1747,
With covering letter from G Charlesworth to James Thorp.

VI.  WATKINSON FAMILY
As noted above, under Schooler, the Watkinson had a family link with the Barkers, as the wife of Godfrey Watkinson the younger was Scholler and her daughter, Jane, married John Barker (d.1755).  The family estates centred on Brampton, Holme Hall, Wadshelf and Newbould, all near Chesterfield.  The Wadshelf papers include some early surveys and and Agreements between the tenants.

A.  MUNIMENTS OF TITLE
DERBYSHIRE

1.  Parish of Bolsover
Bar.D.104

Lease. Nicholas Wright of Chesterfield to James Brailsford husbandman.  Land in Bolsover; for 21 years at £21 rent.

April 10th 1729.  (Badly eaten).

2.  Parish of Brampton
Bar.D.404

Bargain and Sale.  James Stephenson, yeoman, of Ashegate in Brampton and Ellen, his wife, to George Heathcote, the younger, yeoman, of Loads in Brampton.  The Lowndslacke Close in Brampton adjoining a common called Lowndslacke Green; for £24.

July 7th 1600.

Bar.D.39
Bargain and Sale.  John Hibberd, tailor, to Thomas Rayneshaw, butcher, of Chesterfield.  Little Lownd Slacke Close at Brampton; for £22.

Aug 1st 1625

Bar.D.214
Bargain and Sale.  Francis More, butcher, of Chesterfield and Godfrey Stubbing, yeoman, of Whittington to James Calowe, yeoman, of Brampton.  A close in Brampton called Longlands; for £30.5.0.

Sept 6th 1651

Bar.D.215

Bargain and Sale.  John Reinshaw, yeoman, of Chesterfield to Anthony Chalmer, yeoman, of Brymington.  A dole in the Tofts and one other piece of land in the Tofts (bounds given) in  Brampton; for £39.

Feb 6th 1654/5.

Bar.D.29

Bargain and Sale.  John Renshawe, yeoman, of Bolsover Woodhouse to Richard Jenkinson of Walton (Chesterfield).  Messuage at Lownestack Greene, parish of Brampton and named closes; for £322.

April 9th 1667.

Bar.D.216
Deed to make a tenant.  Robert, Earl of Scarsdale, Paul Jenkinson of Walton, par. of Chesterfield, George Beastowe, butcher, of Chesterfield, John Ashe, butcher of Chesterfield and Francis, his wife, Thomas Sutton, baker of Brampton, Robert Sutton, ironmonger , of Tideswell, Francis Calowe, weaver, of Brampton and John Harwood, sadler, of Chesterfield to George Shawe of Spittlefields, par. of Chesterfield to George Shawe of Spittlefields, par. of Chesterfield, and Andrew Gardiner of Clements Inn.  Two deeds in Holmesicke Close, Round Flatt, Cow Close Knowle and other named closes in Brampton and Butt Close and other named closes in Chesterfield; for suffering a recovery by James Mettam, yeoman, of Sutton in le Dale and John Clarke of Little Normanton.

Jan 19th 1681/2.

Bar.D.763

Bond.  Godfrey Watts, son of Thomas Watts of Hall Cliff, parish of Brampton, John watts of Woodhead and Godfrey Watts, son of George Watts of Brampton, to Godfrey Watkinson of Brampton, in £200 for performance of covenants relating to Hall Cliff and the payment of an annuity of £5 to Watkinson for the use of Godfrey Watts.

March 2nd 1708/9.

Bar.D.192
Grant in Trust.  Mary Bright, widow, of Nicholas Bright of Chesterfield and only daughter of Godfrey Watkinson, late of Brampton to John Watkinson, grocer and merchant, of Chesterfield, £800 and New house or Brampton Moore House, Frith Hall, Brampton and messuage and lands in Brampton and Wadshelf and trust for Mary.
Dec 31st 1759

Bar.D.203,766/3
Mortgage.  William Bunting, carpenter, of Glapwell and Gervase Boseville of Hasland to James Tallents, servant of Brabazon Hallows of Glapwell.  The close above the House, the Moor Field Dale, the West Pieces, the Hough dole and other named closes in the parish of Brampton; redeemable for £110.

Dec 31st 1763

Bond for payment of £220.  

Dec 4th 1763.

Bar.D.260,261
Lease and Release.  Godfrey Heathcote of Chesterfield to Thomas Bourne of Brampton Moor by direction of Elizabeth Bourne.  The Milfield and the Near Over Meadow at Brampton; for 10/-.

March 20/21st 1767.

Bar.D.262
Release of interest.  Elizabeth Bright, spinster, Ann Greatorex widow and Joseph Saunders, clerk, who married Frances Bright, all of Chesterfield, Elizabeth, Ann and Frances with Mary Webster, Widow, now insane, are the daughters of Mary Bright, widow, of Chesterfield, daughter of Godfrey Watkinson to Thomas Bourne, Elizabeth, his wife, Ann Birch, widow, Ruth Watkinson, John Barker and Jane, his wife.  Property in Brampton, Newbold and Wadshelf; for £800.

May 4th, 1767

Bar.D.259
Agreement.  Thomas Bourn of Brampton Moor and Elizabeth, his wife, late Elizabeth Watkinson, widow of Godfrey Watkinson and Godfrey Heathcote of Chesterfield, survivor of John Wilkinson, merchant, late of Chesterfield  with Ann Birch, widow, of Manchester.  To hold a capital messuage on Brampton Moor to the uses of the marriage settlement of Thomas Bourne and Elizabeth, at £12 p.a. rent.

Nov 18th 1767.

Bar.D.620
Copy of covenant to levy a fine and lead uses.  Richard Barker, Ruth, his wife and their trustees.  Messuage in Brampton called Firth Hale; The Croft; Long Croft, etc. in Brampton, Wadshelf and Chesterfield, to be held to stated uses Ruth having sole right to the profits without the interference of her husband.
Jan 27th 1768
Bar.D.163-164
Lease and Release.  Ann Birch, widow, of Longsight, Manchester to John Barker of Bakewell.  Three houses on Brampton Moor in the tenancy of Richard Milnes, Doctor of Physic and a close called the Field; for £256.

April 6th 1768.

Bar.D.218,219,220
Lease (counterpart).  English.  John Barker of Bakewell to James Hodkin, yeoman, of Lownsley Green.  Messuage at Lownsley Green; the three Holme-sick Closes; the Field Before the Door; the Three Nooked Field and other named fields there and at holme; for 21 years at £76 rent, with additions for certain lands if ploughed up.

March 31st 1777.

With bond and instructions to lawyer for drawing up the lease.

Bar.D.204,205
Lease and Release.  William Bunting, carpenter, of Glapwell and Ann Tallents, of Sutton (co. Derby), widow and administratrix of James Tallents, to Peter Nightingale of Lea (co. Derby) and his trustee George Evans of Cromford Bridge.  Property as in 203, for £110 to Ann Tallents and 5/- to Bunting.

Dec 25th/26th 1781

Bar.D.208,209
Lease and Release.  Peter Nightingale of Lea to John Barker of Bakewell and William Anthony of Bakewell, his trustees.  Property as in 203; for £160.

Aug 1st/2nd 1791.

Bar.D.585
Lease.  William Day, late of Greenwich now of Hearne, near Canterbury and John Sheppard of Dean St. Southwark, with the consent of John Beaumont, writing master of Greenwich and Jane, his wife to Thomas Barker of Bakewell.  Farms at Wadshelf and Newbold etc. for 63 years at £200 rent.

Feb 18th 1797.

Bar.D.169
Covenant to levy a fine.  Sarah Barker, spinster, of Edensor, Jane Barker, spinster, of Ashford and Robert Barker, fustian manufacturer, of Leigh, co. Lancaster, three of the surviving younger children of John Barker to Robert Birch of Bakewell.  Three cottages at Lound Hill Green, Brampton; Closes at Holme; the Dole field and the Oxfield etc. at Brampton; Closes at Holme; Butts Close, Chesterfield, etc. to levy a fine for the use of Thomas Barker of Ashford.

Nov 14th 1799.

Bar.D.221,222
Abstracts of John henry Barker’s title to premises at Brampton.

1746-1833

Bar.D.641
Schedule of title deeds relating to estates at Bakewell, Brampton and Newbould, the property of John Henry Barker and in mortgage to Edmund Bacon and Thomas Alfred Barker for securing £10,750.

1746-1837

3.  Parish of Chesterfield: Chesterfield
Bar.D.33
Lease.  Godfrey Foljambe of Morehouse (co. Derby) to Robert Watkynson, yeoman, of Little Normanton.  Three and a half acres in the Broke Meadow ‘a little from the Olde Mylne’, parish of Chesterfield, and an acre to the southwest of the Broke Meadow; for 21 years, at 9/6 rent.

Jan 27th 1576/7.

Bar.D.172
Copy of the will of Jonathan Lee of Chesterfield.  Messuage and Waddington Close, Chesterfield to his aunt, Christiana Pegge.

Nov 29th 1779

4.  Parish of Chesterfield: Holme Hall and Newbould
Bar.D.24
Declaration of trust.  Edward Trussell of London and Nicholas Leeke, son of Lord Deynecourt.  Holm Hall and a corn mill in the parish of Chesterfield to be held to the use of Nicholas.

December 16th 1651

Bar.D.27

Quitclaim.  Nicholas, Lord Deyncourt, to Edward Trussell of London.  Holm Hall, etc.

Oct 10th 1655

Bar.D.25,26
Declaration of trust.  William Humbel of London and Joseph Sheldon, draper of the same to Rodger Price of London.  Holm Hall and corn mill granted by Trussell to Humble, Price and Sheldon.  Humble and Sheldon are declared to be trustees for Price.

Dec 20th 1655

Grant (25) Oct 12th 1655

Bar.D.40,544

Final Concords (a pair).  English.  Roger Price, William Humble and Joseph Sheldon, plaintiffs, Edward Trussell and Susan, his wife, deforceants.  A water mill, barn, stable, 100 acres, etc in Chesterfield; for £160.

Nov 1655

Bar.D.546
Lease (release packing).  Sir John Moore, Lord Mayor of London, Sir William Dolben, justice of the Kings Bench, Nicholas Charlton of London, executors of Roger Price late of Westbury (co. Bucks) and Roger son of Roger Price to John Lillyman of Beasely, Christopher Hardy of Sutton, Holme Hall, a water corn mill etc.
Dec 24th 1681 (partly illegible)

Bar.D.31,545
Deed to make a tenant.  (Lease and release).  Robert, Earl of Scarsdale, John Lillyman, clerk of Pleasley, Christopher Hardy of Sutton in the Dale and Robert Hodgkinson, yeoman, of Sherbrooke to Andrew Gardiner of Clements Inn and James Clarke of Sutton, to suffer a recovery for the benefit of the Earl of Scarsdale.  Holme Hall, Killamarsh Manor House, and property in Sherbrooke etc.

April 9/10th 1682

Bar.D.35

Lease (Release lacking).  Robert, Earl of Scarsdale and Christopher Hardie of Sutton-in-le-Dale to Herman and John Olmius.  Holme Hall and property in Pleasley, Scarcliffe, etc.

June 19th 1701

Bar.D.34a,b
Copy Lease and Release.  Herman Olmius, merchant of London and John, his son, To Robert, Earl of Scarsdale.  The manors of Palterton and Scarcliffe (cc. Derby), Holme Hall, cottage at Sherbrooke and named closes, etc. (part of release lacking).

June 19th 1704

Bar.D.38
Mortgage.  Nicholas, Earl of Scarsdale to Susanna Fosbroke of Derby.  Holme Farm redeemable for £1,150.

June 14th 1731

Bar.D.36
Mortgage.  Nicholas, Earl of Scarsdale, to Robert Fletcher of Orelgreaves, Holme Farm.  Redeemable for £1,300.10.0.

June 14th 1733

Bar.D.37
Assignment.  Robert Fletcher of Owlgreaves and Susanna, his wife, formerly Flasbrooke to Ann Flosbrooke of Derby.  Holme Farm for the remainder of a 1,000 year term from Nicholas, Earl of Scarsdale; for £1,250.

June 15th 1733

Bar.D.239,191
Lease and Release.  Nicholas, Earl of Scarsdale to Godfrey Watkinson of Brampton, Holme Farm and appurtenances; for £1,369.13.0.
May 14/15th 1755.

Bar.D.240
Mortgage.  Godfrey Watkinson of Brampton to Ann Flosbrooke, spinster, of Derby.  Holme Farm, redeemable for £1,431.6.0.

May 16th 1735

Bar.D.210
Conveyance.  Anne Fosbrooke, spinster, of Derby to Godfrey Watkinson of Brampton Moor and Godfrey Stearne, clerk, of Chesterfield his trustee.  Holme Farm, Chesterfield for £1,400.16.0.

May 17th 1736

Bar.D.151
Lease.  Godfrey Watkinson, the younger, of Brampton Moore to David Allison, husbandman, of Holme, par. Chesterfield.  Messuage at Holme and lands, etc. appertaining; for 21 years at £110 and £3 in the last four years for each acre ploughed.

Feb 1st 1758/9.

Bar.D.636

Mortgage.  Godfrey Heathcote of Chesterfield who survived John Wilkinson, merchant, late of Chesterfield to Robert Newton of Norton House at Holme and a water corn mill and named closes there, and in Newbold, for £300 paid to Elizabeth Bourne, wife of Thomas Bourne, late of Brampton, formerly Watkinson; redeemable for the same sum.

April 2nd 1767.

Bar.D.211
Conveyance.  Elizabeth Bourne, wife of Thomas Bourne, widow of Godfrey Watkinson, to Godfrey Heathcote.  Holme Farm at Newbold; for £400.

April 2nd 1767.

Bar.D.161,162
Feoffment to uses (lease and release).  Godfrey Heathcote of Chesterfield, who survived John Wilkinson, merchant, of Chesterfield to Richard Wilkinson, merchant, of Chesterfield and Bernard Lucas, merchant, of the same.  A house and cornmill at Holme and Horse Pasture, Sherman Field, Spencer Field, etc.  to be held to the use of Thomas Bourne of Brampton Boor, and to the use of Godfrey Heathcote, for 300 years for securing payment to him of £400 lent by him to Elizabeth, wife of Thomas.

Bar.D.153,154
Draft Bargain and Sale and Release.  Sarah Barker, widow, of East Lodge and others to John Henry Barker of Bakewell.  Farms at Newbould and Holme, water mill at Holme; for £2,500.

Dec 30/31st 1836.

Bar.D.622,623
Copies of deeds relating to grants by Olmius to the Earl of Scarsdale.

June 20th 1701, June 20th 1704.

(Holme Hall deeds).

Bar.D.119
Abstract of J. H. Barker’s title to estates at Holme Farm, Chesterfield.

1746-1832

B.  SETTLEMENTS
Bar.D.543
Grant of Annuity.  Godfrey Watkinson, yeoman, of Brampton to Susan Peace, daughter of Henry Peace, yeoman, of Ouldcoate in the parish of Blythe, (co. Nottingham).  An annuity of £13 from lands in Brampton in consideration of the marriage to be solemnised between Godfrey, son of Godfrey Watkinson, and Susan.
Sept 8th 1635.

Bar.D.568
Agreement.  Godfrey Watkinson of Newhouse, Brampton with William Clowes, the younger, of Langley in Sutton co.  Chester and Mary, his wife, widow of Thomas Greene of the Waters, Bollington (co. Chester).  All Watkinson’s lands etc in Derbyshire and Nottinghamshire excepting copyhold at Bolsover cottages at Renishaw and certain lands at Brampton to be conveyed within 6 months of the majority of Mary Greene, daughter of Thomas, to be held to the uses of her marriage with Watkinson.

Jan 18th 1692/3.

Bar.D.569
Deed to declare uses (badly faded).  Godfrey Watkinson of Newhouse, Brampton and Mary his wife, daughter of Thomas Green of Bollington (co.  Chester) declare the uses of a fine levied on property in Macclesfield for the trusts of their marriage.

Jan 27th 1701/2

Bar.D.283,284
Marriage Settlement (lease and release).  Mary Webster, widow, of Thomas Webster, alderman, of Chesterfield and Godfrey Webster, tanner, of Chesterfield, son of Thomas and Mary, to Godfrey Watkinson of Brampton and Marmaduke Carver, the younger, of Chesterfield.  A house on St Mary’s Gate, Chesterfield, with a tan yard, etc to stated uses on the marriage of Godfrey Webster and Mary Stubbing, spinster, daughter of Godfrey stubbing, late of Whittington and niece of Godfrey Watkinson, and for £200.
June 1/2nd 1713.

Bar.D.631
Bond.  William Pearse, husbandman, of Brampton to Godfrey Watkinson in £50 for ensuring that Mary Makinson, whom Pearse is to marry shall have free disposal of the estate of her late husband, Robert Makinson, in Brampton.

Feb 15th 1723/4.

Bar.D.223, 256
Pre-nuptial Settlement, counterpart and bond.  Godfrey Watkinson, the elder; and Godfrey Watkinson, the younger, to Strelley Pegge of Beauchief, Henry Bourne of Spittle, Chesterfield and Thomas Walthall of Bakewell.  New House, or Brampton Moor House, Frith Hall in Brampton, Newbold and Wadshelf, to the use of Godfrey Watkinson, the younger, and to secure £150 jointure to his intended wife Elizabeth, daughter of Robert Scholler of Rowseley, and to other stated uses.

Oct 27th 1736.

Bar.D.646,770/9
Cases for opinion concerning the marriage settlement of Godfrey Watkinson, and Mary Green and matters arising from other deeds.

1757
Bar.D.217

Copy Surrender and Admission.  English.  Bolsover.  Court Baron of William, Duke of Portland and Margaret Cavendish, his wife.  Mary Watkinson, spinster, eldest surviving daughter of Godfrey Watkinson, later of Brampton, by John Carter her attorney to the uses of her will.  All her property in the manor.

Fine 5/4.

July 3rd 1761

Bar.D.575,576,577,263
Pre-nuptial settlement (lease and release) and copy.  Elizabeth Watkinson, widow, of Godfrey Watkinson, late of Brampton Moore, with the consent of Thomas Bourne, late captain of a company of the 76th Regiment of Foot, to Godfrey Heathcote and John Wilkinson, merchant, both of Chesterfield.  New House at Brampton, an annuity of £150 and a fourth part of Watkinson’s other property, to uses on the marriage of Elizabeth and Thomas Bourne. 
June 16th 1764

Similar deed from Thomas Bourne.

Bar.D.264
Deed of Partition.  Thomas Bourne of Brampton Moor and Elizabeth his wife, late Watkinson, Ann Birch, widow of Jonathan Birch, merchant, of Manchester, Ruth Watkinson, spinster, of Brampton and John Barker of Bakewell and Jane, his wife, to Robert Newton and Thomas Lees of Platt, at the direction of Bernard Lucas, merchant, of Chesterfield and Samuel Brailsford of Rowthorne.  Holme Farm and other farms and properties in Newbold and Brampton to be held for partition among Elizabeth, Ann, Ruth, and Jane, according to the direction of the will of their father Godfrey Watkinson.  With Schedule.

Jan 20th 1767.

Bar.D.578
Quitclaim.  Elizabeth Bright, spinster, of Chesterfield, Ann Greatorex, widow, of the same and Joseph Saunders, clerk of the same, who married Frances Bright, deceased, Elizabeth, Ann and Frances with Mary Webster, now insane, being daughters of Mary Bright, daughter of Godfrey Watkinson, to Thomas Bourne and Elizabeth, his wife, Ann Birch, Ruth Watkinson, John Barker and Jane, his wife.   All the lands charged with £800 by a settlement of Mary Bright for payment to her daughters; for £800.

May 4th 1767.

Bar.D.615
Copy of agreement.  Richard Barker, the younger, apothecary, with Ruth Watkinson, spinster, of Bakewell.  To appoint Thomas Lees of Platts (co. Lancaster) and John Statham of James St. Westminster, trustees for all Ruth’s property in Derbyshire, to be held to the uses of the marriage between Richard and Ruth.

June 10th 1767

(Further copy and Final Concord).

Bar.D.797
Agreement between Thomas Bourne of Rowsley and Elizabeth, his wife, and Stephen Melland, surgeon, of Bakewell and Ann, his wife, Richard Barker, surgeon, of London and John Barker of Bakewell and Jane, his wife, for the division of the deeds relating to the estates of Godfrey Watkinson.

May 20th 1772.

(copy Bar.D. 766-2)

C.  WILLS AND EXECUTORSHIP PAPERS
Bar.D.740,741

Releases, quitclaims and receipts from legatees under the will of Godfrey Watkinson, the elder, to Godfrey Watkinson, his son.

1759-1764.

Bar.D.678
Copy of the Will of Godfrey Watkinson of Newholme.  His daughters, Elizabeth, Mary, Ann, Ruth and Jane are to make an equal partition of the estates they will receive under the settlement of Godfrey and Elizabeth, his wife.

April 29th 1746.

Bar.D.770/5,6,7,8
Quitclaims from Ruth Watkinson, John Barker, Mary Watkinson and Anne Watkinson to Mrs Elizabeth Watkinson as executrix of Godfrey Watkinson.

1762-3.

Bar.D.686-689
Copy of the will of Elizabeth Bourne, wife of Thomas Bourne.  March, 18th 1773.  Extracts made on Dec 21st, 1773, with two copies of the will made about 1830.

Bar.D.76/3
Case paper for opinion on the Bourne claims to property at Hope and shares in the Fortoway and other lead mines.

1779.

D.  ESTATE PAPERS
1.  Parish of Bolsover
Bar.D.770/1,2,3,4
Surveys of farms at Bolsover purchased from Mrs Watkinson n.d. and valuation of three farms at Bolsover belonging to Mrs Watkinson.

1764.

2.  Parish of Brampton: Brampton
Bar.D.612
Licence.  Latin.  William Walmsley, Vicar of the Bishop of Lichfield, to Godfrey Watkinson and James Swift for the use of a pew in the west aisle of Brampton church formerly belonging to Thomas Watts.

Jan 20th 1707/8.

Bar.D.765
Receipts of Godfrey Watkinson for fee farm rents due to Lady Henrietta Cavendish Holles, Countess Dowager of Oxford, for lands in Chesterfield, Brampton and Newbold.
1750, 1755.

Bar.D.766/1
Valuation of Watkinson’s estates at Brampton.

1766.

Bar.D.767/1

Survey of unidentified properties (begins with Holme Farm, n.d. Valuation of Holme Farm showing the shares due to Captain Bourne and J. Barker.

1777

3.  Parish of Brampton: Wadshelf
Bar.D.769

Terrier of the lands of John Watkinson at Wadshelf, which he purchased from Carrington.

Nov 18th 1585.

Bar.D.758
Terrier of the messuages and lands etc in Wadshelf belonging to Godfrey Watkinson.  Taken by George Smith, George Revell and Richard Bradshawe.

My 23rd 1649.

Bar.D.764
Agreement between the inhabitants of Wadshelf concerning the use of the grass etc in the open fields of Wadshelf and the preservation of conr.

Nov 5th 1663.

Bar.D.759
Survey of parcels of arable land in Wadshelf in the holding of John Revell, Geroge Revell and William Marjerison.  Taken by Jas. Parker.

June 16th 1676.

Bar.D.760
Pains laid at the Great Court Leet (of the Honour of Peveril) concerning the customs, etc of the open fields of Wadshelf, Northfield, Netherfield, and Wheatcroft.  John Bradshaw and Robert Margerison, being overseers of the open fields.

April 20th 1697.

A copy of the above.

Bar.D.822
‘A plot of Wadshelfe in the Parish of Brampton and County of Derby, taken in May, 1700, by Joseph Parker’.  With elevation of buildings, strips numbered and names and quantities of the freeholders 1” = 3 chains.

Bar.D.761
Articles of agreement between the inhabitants of Wadshelfe concerning the use of the grass in the open fields and the preservation of the corn.

Nov. 15th 1706.

Bar.D.762
Lists of the tenants responsible for repairing the fences bounding the Wheatcroft and Northfield at Wadshelf.  Gives number of yards for which each bears the responsibility.

1706.

Copy of the above.

VII OTHER FAMILIES
These are small groups of documents appertaining to families whose contacts with the Barkers did not add appreciably to the development of the estates and a few which have no apparent connection with the sections above.

1.  ASHBY FAMILY
Thomas Ashby of Edensor, merchant (d.1810), married Suttonia, daughter of Thomas Barker of Belvoir.  Their son, Henry, was a partner in a firm of mercers in Bakewell.  He died without issue.

A.  SETTLEMENTS
Bar.D.719
Agreement.  Henry Ashby of Edensor and Robert Shaw, mercer and draper, of Baslow with Thomas Ashby of Edensor and Suttonia, his wife, and John Carver, clerk, of Morthen.  Suttonia to be free to call on any part of £1,000 borrowed by Henry from Suttonia his mother and advanced under certain articles of co-partnership.

June 21st 1800.

Bar.D.723
Agreement.  Robert Shaw and Henry Ashby agree with Suttonia Ashby, wife of Thomas Ashby of Edensor that they will pay her for 13 years a yearly rent equal to 5% of the purchase money which she is to pay for a house and shop in Bakewell Market Place and Grammar’s croft to be bought at the sale of the Grammar estate.

Feb 20th 1801.

Bar.D.303-306
Three deeds relating to Nether or Grammar’s Croft in Bakewell devised under the will of Dame Gertrude Gresley, wife of Sir Nigel Bowyer Gresley to trustees and passing into the possession of Thomas Ashby of Edensor and Suttonia, his wife.  Assigned to Thomas Barker for £120 in accordance with Suttonia’s directions.

1802-9.

Bar.D.586

Surrender to merge in freehold.  John Barker of Bakewell at the request of Henry Ashby, widow, of Bakewell, deceased, to Marmaduke Middleton Middleton of Leam, son and heir of the Rev. John Carver, who was a trustee of Suttonia Ashby.  Nether or Grammars Croft at upper end of Bakewell Long Meadow, in trust to extinguish a term of 500 years in the freehold.

June 1st 1818.  

B.  WILLS
Bar.D.640
Copy of the Will of Suttonia Ashby, widow of Bakewell.  Real and personal property to her son, Henry, except a warrant of attorney for the securing of £1,000 which is bequeathed to John Barker of Bakewell and James Swettenham of Wood End, parish of Matlock.  Henry Ashby appointed as executor.  

May 3rd 1817.

Bar.D.608
Probate certificate of Suttonia Ashby, farmer, of Bakewell.

Oct. 16th, 1818.

Bar.D.720
Copy of the will of Henry Ashby, draper, dwelling house at Bakewell; two stalls and a pew in Bakewell Church to Edward Barker, his cousin; his eight-day clock to Jane Barker and other bequests to Elizabeth, James, Mary, Ann, Francis and Thomas Rawson Barker.  Edward appointed executor.

Sept 23rd 1819.

Bar.D.603
Copy of the will of Henry Ashby of Bakewell.  A messuage in the Market Place at Bakewell etc. bequeathed by Suttonia Ashby, her mother, to Sarah Barker and John Barker is bequeathed to John Henry Barker.

Dec. 17th, 1831.

2.  CALVERT FAMILY
Robert Scholler married a daughter of Dorothy Calvert of Rowsley and also acted as executor for George Calvert who had been in business as a silkweaver.

Bar.D.186
Release (lease lacking).John Calvert of Yevely near Ashbourne, son of John Calvert late of Bakewell, Dorothy Calvert of London, widow of John Clavert, George Calvert, silkman of London, a younger son of John Calvert to George Bellamy of London, son of George Bellamy of Gossport (Hants.) Copyhold messuages at North Fareham, co. Southampton, originally held by John Calvert in trust for the children of Francis Gregg of Clements Inn.
Dec  29th 1715.

A.  DEED (Hampshire) 
Bar.D.186
Release (lease lacking).  John Calvert of Yevely near Ashbourne, son of John Calvert late of Bakewell, Dorothy Calvert of London, widow of John Calvert, George Calvert, silkman, of London, a younger son of John Calvert, George Calvert, silkman, of London, a young son of John Calvert to George Bellamy of London, son of George Bellamy of Gossport (Hants.) Copyhold messuages at North Fareham, co. Southampton, originally held by John Calvert in trust for the children of Francis Gregg of Clements Inn.
Dec 29th 1715.

B.  WILLS AND EXECUTORSHIP PAPERS
Bar.D.555

Probate of the will of Thomas Calvert, citizen and joiner of London, now of St Andrews, Holburn.  A workshop in Theobald’s Court to his nephew, Samuel Ferniough, and a leasehold in New North St. to his cousin, George Calvert, who is appointed executor.
Oct 11th 1714.

Probate Oct 21st 1714.

Bar.D.556,557
Two copies of the will of Dorothy Calvert, widow, of Rowsley.  Bequests to her granddaughters, Dorothy, Ruth and Elizabeth Scholler, John Calvert her son; Mary Holmes, Jane Sleigh, Dorothy Bunting and Francis Clayton, her daughters-in-law; Daniel Baker of London, her son-in-law, Elizabeth Barker of Bakewell, etc.  Residue to her son-in-law, Robert Scholler, who is appointed executor.  

Oct 17th 1722.

One copy (557) proved on May 16th 1723.

Bar.D.624,625
Bond.  Francis Bunting of Youlgreave to Robert Scholler of Beeley in £20.  Bunting having received legacies under the will of George Calvert from Scholler, his executor he is to pay back his share if Scholler is compelled to pay certain of Calvert’s debts as a result of actions pending in Chancery.
Sept 12th 1733.

Similar bond from John Calvert of Yeaveley.

Bar.D.627
Articles of agreement.  Francis Bunting of Nether Haddon with George Savile.  To convey to Savile land to the value of £30, he acting as trustee for a sum of £400 bequeathed by his father, John Calvert, to Dorothy Calvert whom Bunting is to marry.

June 19th 1711.

C.  PARTNERSHIP
Dissolution of partnership.  George Calvert, silkman, of London and William Wyatt, silkman, of London.  All Calvert’s share in the partnership of the two in the silk trade, assigned to Wyatt; for £1,800.  With a schedule of the debts owed to the partners.

July 10th 1717.

D.  APPRENTICESHIP INDENTURE
Apprenticeship indenture.  George Calvert, so of John Calvert of Beeley to Augustus Martin, skinner of London.
June 11th 1707.

3.  GARDOM FAMILY
Thomas Barker (1767-1816) of Ashford married in 1803 Sarah, daughter of William Gardom of Bakewell and Mary, daughter of Joseph Broom head of Baslow.  William Gardom was associated with Gardom and Pares, cotton spinners, of Calver Mill and some of the deeds relate to this.

A.  MUNIMENTS OF TITLE
1.  Parish of Bakewell
Bar.D.278

Release (lease lacking).  Thomas Barker of Bakewell, son and heir of William Parker, late of Sheldon, by Elizabeth, only daughter of Thomas Woodward, apothecary, of Bakewell, and Thomas’s wife, Anne, to John Barker, framework knitter, of Litton and John Girdom, framework knitter, of the same.  Cowley Close in Bakewell for £125.
July 10th 1744.

Bar.D.277

Lease (Release lacking).  Thomas Barker, hosier of Bakewell and John Gardom, hosier, of Bubnell to John Bromehead and Jonathan Bromehead, mercers, of Eckington.  Cowley Close in Bakewell used as bleaching with the warehouses workshops adjoining.

Jan 22nd 1748/9.

Bar.D.298
Feoffment.  Nicholas Broomhead, malster, of Cock Hill at the direction of William Gardom, of Bleaching Yard House, to Thomas Barker of Ashford.  Piece of land in Bakewell Field known as The Thirteen Roods of Greenhill; for £196.
Feb 10th 1808.

Bar.D.307
Covenant.   William Gardom of Bleaching Yard House to Nicholas Broomhead of Cockhill, Baslow.  The Bleaching Yard House Cowley Close, Bakewell and interest in the firm of Gardom Fares and Co, carrying on business at Calver Mill; for £300 in addition to the £1,100 paid already.
Aug. 30th 1815.

Bar.D.201,202
Two copies of a schedule of the deeds of William Gardom relating to the Cote Closes, the Cowley Close and Bleaching Yard House, in Bakewell.

1715-1815.

B.  SETTLEMENTS
Bar.D.525,526
Deed to levy a line to make a tenant.  John Gardom, hosier, of Bubnell and Christian, his wife, devisees of Benjamin Chappell, woolstapler, of Youlgreave, Christian’s former husband, John Derman, doctor of physic, of Bakewell, Richard Prime, warehouseman of Buckersley, Benjamin Chappell of Youlgreave, nephew of Benjamin Chappell, William and Thomas Gardom, hosiers, of Bubnel. To Edward Wilmot, of the Middle Temple.  Nutlow Closes in Youlgeave, Hucklow, Matlock, Tideswell and sittings in Matlock Parish Church.  To levy a fine in order to make Wilmot the tenant to the praecipe to suffer a recovery by Thomas Gardom to hold to such uses as John and Christian Gardom and Benjamin Chappell shall direct.
April 17th 1779.

Bar.D.109,110
Lease and Release.  Thomas Gardom, hosier, late of Bubnell, now of the Cliff, par. of Bakewell by the direction of Christian Gardom, widow, of Youlgreave and Benjamin Chappell, woolcomber, of Salford, late of Youlgreave, to William Gardom, cottonspinner, of Bakewell and Alexander Bossley, of Bakewell.  Little Hucklow Cow Pasture; High Meadow; a barn near Windmill House, in Little Hucklow; a house at Matlock Bank and several inclosures at Matlock etc.  In trust for William Gardom; for £350 and a bond of £500 between William Gardom and Christian.  March 24/25th1796.  (Sarah, daughter of William Gardom, married Thomas Barker, who died 1816.)
Bar.D.111
Covenant to produce deeds.  Benjamin Chappell, fustian manufacturer, of Salford, devisee of Benjamin Chappell, late of Youlgreave to Thomas Gardom, cotton spinner, of Cliff House, Bakewell.  For production of deeds relating to the property in 110.  Schedule attached.

July 15th 1805.

Bar.D.112
Schedule of the title deeds of Benjamin chappell to estates at Youlgreave, Tideswell, Little Hucklow and Great Hucklow.

1699-1805.

Bar.D.296,297
Feoffment to uses (lease and release).  William Gardom, of the Bleaching Yard House, Bakewell, who has just attained his majority, with the consent of Mary Gardom, of Bakewell, widow, of William Gardom, cotton-spinner, of Bakewell and Horatio Mason, cotton-spinner , of Calver Mill, to Nicholas Broomhead, malster, of Cock Hill, Baslow.  The Bleaching Yard House and Cowley Close; fourteen beast gates on the open pasture known as the Old Pasture, and pieces in Bakewell Fields, etc, to stated uses.  
Feb 20th/21st 1807.

Bar.D.200
Case concerning Sarah Barker’s position under the will of her father William Gardom after her marriage to John Barker.  

1816.

Bar.D.195
Grant of annuity.  Sarah Barker, Sarah Barker, widow, of Bleaching Yard House, John Barker of Bakewell and Marmaduke Middleton Middleton of Lean to William Gardom of Bakewell.   Rent charge of £52 from Bleaching Yard House and Coley Croft,, for life; for £738.

June 1st 1820.

Bar.D.196,197
Two copies of the will of William Gardom, cotton spinner of Bleaching Yard House, Bakewell.  All his property to Horatio Mason, cotton-spinner of Calver Mill and Nicholas Broomhead of Cockhill, testator’s brother-in-law.  

Sept 6th 1799

Proved April 18th 1800. 

D.  PARTNERSHIP
Bar.D.199
Articles of agreement.  John Pares of Leicester, Thomas Gardom of The Clliff, and William Gardom of Bakewell with George Rickards of Calver Mill and James Heygate of London.  To establish a partnership for the purpose of carrying on cotton manufacture at Calver for the remainder of a term of 21 years from Thomas Eyre of Hassop.

Oct 7th 1789.

E.  BOND
Assignment of a bond.  William Gardom, manufacturer, formerly of Bakewell, now of Manchester, to William Jones of Manchester, Lewis Loyd of London, Samuel Jones Loyd of London, Edward Loyd of Manchester and John Tabor, all bankers.  A bond for £4,600 from Sarah Barker of Bleaching House Yard, Bakewell, John Barker of Bakewell and Marmaduke Middleton Middleton to secure Gardom’s account with Tabor and Loyd.

Oct 25th 1817.

4.  VARIOUS FAMILIES
A.  SETTLEMENTS

Bar.D.213
Settlement.  Thomas Reynshawe, butcher, of Chesterfield to Anthony Challamor. Butcher of Chesterfield.  Toftes and Mean Toftes in Brampton to uses in consideration of the marriage of Anthony and Francis, daughter of Thomas Reynshawe and for £20.  
November 19th, 1637.

Bar.D.590
Agreement (copy).  
B.  WILLS AND EXECUTORSHIP PAPERS
Bar.D.412
Copy of the will of Nicholas North, yeoman, of Bakewell.  All his property to his son Thomas.

Dec 15th 1664.

Bar.D.621
Probate copy of the will of John Froggatt of Whittington.  All his copyhold land in Eckington to his wife, Elizabeth, in lieu of jointure and a rent charge of £40 from lands in Whittington and the parish of Mathfield (co. Stafford).  Bequests to his sons Godfrey and William and daughters, Elizabeth and Hannah.
Aug 23rd 1692

Probate Nov 16th 1692.

Bar.D.225

Will of John Bright of Chesterfield.   His house at Nether Green, Stumperlowe and messuages adjoining to his son, John Bright; Hollis Croft, Chesterfield; a cottage and two lands in Hasland; houses in Walton, Spittle and Newbould and a messuage in Upper Whiteley Wood, also to this son, etc.
Feb 9th 1721/2.

Bar.D.87
Copy of the will of Thomas Challamar of Coate, parish of Chesterfield.   Property in Coate, South Normanton, Eckington.

June 8th 1752.

Bar.D.436
Copy of the will of William Green, eldest son of William Green of Ashford in the Water.  All his property to his uncles, Thomas Green of Ashford and John Green, surgeon, of Chapel-en-le-Frith, to be stated uses.

April 8th 1761

Bar.D.179
Copy of the will of Edward Phasay, flax dresser, of Bakewell.  All his estates at Sheldon and Bakewell to Geroge Travis, husbandman of Calton Lees, Edensor and Barker John Blockley to stated uses.

Nov. 20th 1784.

Proved May 14th 1789.

Bar.D.633

Copy of the will of George Oldham of Derby.  Bequests to Ann Toplis, daughter of William Toplis of Mansfield, George and Catherine Oldham, his children, Gilbert Minion, currier, of Derby.

June 30th 1819.

Proved April 23rd 1825.

Bar.D.804/5
Papers of Dr Thomas Alfred Barker as executor of Charles Baldwin including a copy of a grant by Charles Baldwin to Thomas Alfred Barker and Michael Smith as his trustees of an eighteenth share in a newspaper known as Bell’s Weekly Messenger, and legal and financial papers re other trusts 1840s-1880s and executorships.

1855.

C.  APPRENTICESHIP INDENTURE
Bar.D.614
Thomas, son of Mary Wheatley of Chesterfeild, to George Bennet, joiner, of Chesterfield.

May 12th 1707.

VIII PAPERS RELATING TO MINING
Several members of the Barker family were engaged in business as lead merchants and smelters including John barker (1751-1795), his sons, Thomas (1767-1816) and John (1769-1841), and his grandson, Thomas Rawson Barker (b. 1812).  The latter was a partner in the Sheffield White Lead Works in Pond Mill Lane.  In addition to lead the possession of the Brampton estates gave the Barkers an interest in coal and ironstone which is also represented here.

A few papers relating to industrial concerns will be found in the papers of the Calvert and Gardom families.   (Section VII, nos 2,3.)

A.  LEAD MINING
1.  Accounts
Bar.D.810,811
Abstracts of the accounts of Thomas and George Barker as lead merchants, 1744-1749.  Abstract of Thomas Barker’s accounts for mines (Leadnams, Cowclose, Whalf, Wheal Sough, Deep Rake, Bushes Grove, Blythe Sough, Calver Sough, Griff, Mine, Mosemear, Oxlose South, Dale vein, Whitelow, Harpur, shining Stone, Chappell Dale, Mawry Mine, Bole Hill, High Stoll, Wham, Rising Sun, and Old Legacy).  
1745-9.

Bar.D.733
John Barker’s account for lot, tithe and cope of lead of the Duke of Rutland, 1829.  Mines:- Blithe Engine, Shining Sough, Engine, Parks Engine, Parks Hillock, Wheels Rake Grove and the Haddon, Youlgreave, Harthill, Winster and Elton mines.

2.  Lead mining cases
Bar.D.651

Verdict of the small Barmoot Court at Wensley.  Anthony Semour and others v. Peter Barker, Ellis Mellor, John Barker, Rowland Bestall and others for trespassing on and retaining a grove or meer in the Futher Oldfield at Wensley.  Judgement for the plaintiffs, who are to pay for the jurors’ dinners and twopence damages.

Nov. 25th 1646.

Bar.D.724
Summary of the case Attorney General v. Wall relating to the claim of the Duke of Devonshire to Lot in the High Peak as a lessee of the Crown, 1759.
Bar.D.807

Papers relating to dispute over Portoway Mine arising from the marriage and settlement of Thomas Bourne and Elizabeth Watkinson.

1781-6.
Bar.D.805
Instructions for John Barker, arbitrator in a dispute between Peter Wilson Overend and others against Samuel Mawson concerning the mines in Coldstone Field, Bewerley (West Riding).

c.1789.

(See also lead-mining maps).

3. Deeds: Derbyshire mines
Bar.D.531

Mortgage.  John Carson, miner, of Youlgreave to Thomas Barker of Bakewell, steward to the Duke of Rutland.  A cottage and two gardens in Youlgreave, a share of the Intack Grove or Intack Old Pipe lead mine in Youlgreave and 1/16 share in Hardwork Mine, at Harthill, as security for a debt of £10 owed to Barker.

May 25th 1739.

Bar.D.193,194
Lease and Release.  Peter Nightingale of Lea (co. Derby) and Francis Smedley of Mancehster, elest son of Joseph Smedley of Youlgreave, who was a trustee for Peter Nightingale, to Stephen Melland, surgeon of Bakewell.  A twenty-fourth part of Hill Carr Sough and the lead mines belonging and of a paper mill at Alport, a fulling mill at Alport, lands in Darley, etc for £1,000.

March 13th 1792.

Bar.D.813-816
Lease and Release.  William Melland, miner, of Alport to Charles Barker of East Ldoge.  A 36th share of Blithe lead mine, in the liberty of Hartle, parish of Bakewell; a 36th share of Shining Sough in the parish of Youlgreave; five 24th parts in the Guy Vein in the parish of Bakewell; a 24th part of Wheels Rake, liberty of Haddon; for £1,300.

Feb/ 21st/22nd 1837.

Notices (3) of sale of shares in the Alport mines by Francis Barker to Charles Baker, Lieutenant, R.N. 1844.

Bar.D.817
Agreement.  Sarah Barker, spinster of Bakewell with James Barker of the same.  A 24th share of a lead mine called Blithe Forefield in the Liberty of Harthill, to be reconveyed to James on payment of £1,300 lent to him by Sarah.

June 1st 1837.

Bar.D.43

Certificate of Sale.  William Melland of Alport to John Barker of Bakewell.  A 72nd and 1/3 part of a 72nd share in Alport mines for £53.6.8.

July 15th 1840.

Bar.D.867

Grant.  John Goodwin and John Holland of Monyash to Critchlow Brocklehurst, Benjamin Simpson, Alexander Elliott and John Elliott, lead miner, all of Sheldon.  The far Mycross mine in the liberty of Bakewell, for £1.5.0.

June 20th 1872.

Bar.D.869.870

Grant and draft.  Critchlow Brocklehurst and Benjamin Simpson, both of Sheldon and Alexander Elliott and John Elliott late of Sheldon now of Unstone, to Thomas Rawson Barker, lead merchant, of Sheffield and Richard Rose of Aylesbury, Bucks.  The Par Mycross mine in the liberty of Bakewell; for £16.

Oct. 10th 1872.

Bar.D.868
Grant.  Critchlow Brocklehurst and Benjamin Simpson, both of Sheldon and Alexander and John Elliott of Unstone to Thomas Rawson Barker of Sheffield, and Richard Rose of Aylesbury.  Mandale and Harroway Marr mines in the Liberty of Ashford; for £16.

Oct. 10th, 1872,

4.  Deed: Welsh Mines
Bar.D.77
Lease.   Thomas Griffin of Penypompren, par. of Llanfihangel  Generglyn co. Cardigan, to John Barker of Bakewell and John Eley of Alport.  The mines of lead, tin, copper, calamine, Black Jack, etc under Darren Fawr and Darren Vach in the parish of Lllanbadarnfawr (co. Cardigan), for 30 years, at £1.5.0. for every ton of lead ore, 10/- for every ton of calamine, 5/- a ton for Black Jack.

June 24th. 1785.

5.  Deeds: Sheffield White Lead Works
Bar.D.818
Mortgage of shares.  James Barker, lead smelter, of Bakewell and Thomas Rawson Barker, lead manufacturer, to Jane Barker, spinster, of Bakewell.  Seventeen 59th Shares in the Sheffield White Lead Works in which John Barker, deceased, was a partner with Thomas Dunnage, James and Thomas Rawson Barker and the trustees of Hannah Rawson.  James and Thomas are John Barker’s trustees.  Redeemable for £3,200.

Jan 1st 1844

Bar.D.748/2-3
Draft lease.  Henry Charles, Duke of Norfolk to Thomas Rawson Barker, lead merchant of Sheffield, Thomas Durnage, lead merchant of Clapham, Surrey, and John Edward Barker of the Inner temple.  A plot of land in Pond Mill Lane, Sheffield and three plots covered with water, one forming part of the tail goit of the White Lead Mill, for 74 years at £100 rent and an adjoining plot for 19 years at £18.  

April 1st 1855.
Draft surrender (unexecuted) of the lease to Egerton Vernon Harcourt.

6.  Lead merchants partnerships
Bar.D.812
Bond.  Thomas Barker of Bakewell to Alexander Barker of Edensor in £5,000 for the securing of a partnership between the two as lead merchants.

Feb 14th 1735/6.

Bar.D.808,809
Bonds of co-partnership between Thomas Barker of Bakewell and George Barker of Baslow in £3,000, for the establishing of a business as lead merchants in which the stock is to be £1,500 of which Thomas has paid £1,000.George paying £500 and undertaking the managing of the business. 

March 19th 1743/4.

7.  Lead mining plans
Bar.D.819
Printed copy of a plan of the veins of lead in Coldstones, at Greenhough (Greenhow) in the manor of Bewerley, leased to Peter Wilson Overend.

Nov 1st 1782.

Bar.D.820
Map of part of the mineral field called Coldstore Field at Bewerley, July 18th, 1789 by J. Saul, in connection with Overend and others against Mawson and others.  Shows the mine shafts and the Grassington-Pateley Road.
8.  Printed pamphlet
Bar.D.806
Written Defence of the Magpie Miners read to the court at Derby, 1834.

B.  COAL AND IRONSTONE
Bar.D.673

Lease.  Thomas Barker of Ashford to Joseph Glossop, corn factor, of Chesterfield.  A vein of coal called the High Coal under a farm at Lownsley Green, Brampton, which will be drained by a sough driven by Thomas Barker, with liberty to continue the sough to drain coal under four closes belonging to Sitwell Sitwell of Renishaw, which is also granted to them; for 21 years, for £30 to Barker and £84 per acre to Barker and Sitwell for all coal mined.
March 26th 1798.

Bar.D.626

Injunction.  John Gillet, attorney, for Elizabeth Reynolds, widow, of Bilsthorpe, (co. Nottingahm) administratrix of William Ingall (her borther), late of Bilsthorpe, to Gilderoy Glossop, executor of Joseph Glossop, coalmaster, late of Stonegravels (par. of Chesterfield) and George Gosling forbidding them to sell a bed of coal at Loundsly Green granted by sir Sitwell Sitwell and Thomas Barker to Jospeh Glossop, who assigned it to Ingall.

Jan 28th 1826
Bar.D.226,227
Lease and draft.  John Henry Barker of East Lodge to William Scholefield of Birmingham.  All the beds of ironstone under Holme Farm, Newbold for 20 years at £4 per acre and £150 for every acre of ironstone mined.

Jan 25th 1844

Bar.D.855
Papers, plans, draft leases of beds of the Dogtooth ironstone and Tapton coal in Badge Close and Little field etc, Brampton, leased to Goodwin and Swallow.

1855

Bar.D.858
Letters and papers relating to coal and ironstone at Brampton:- Draft lease by Duke of Devonshire to Barker of coal in Brampton, 1855; coal and ironstone rents due to the Duke of Devonshire, 1855-1869; map of closes at Ashgate leased for mining.

C.  CLAY
Bar.D.856
Lease of a bed of potters clay under a close at Barmpton to Samuel Briddon, potter, of Brampton, for 21 years at £20 annual rent.

1849.

Draft lease of the same bed to Henry Briddon for 14 years, at £30 annual rent.

1871.

IX  MISCELLANEOUS GROUPS OF RECORDS
These are papers which do not form an integral part of the arrangement by family above.  They are principally the records of the stewardships held by Scholler and Barker and some civil parish records, probably derived from the office of overseer or churchwarden.  There are also a few printed pamphlets, etc, mostly from the papers of Dr. Thomas Barker.

A.  PAPERS OF THE DUKE OF RUTLAND’S STEWARDS
Robert Scholler, and John and Thomas Barker were all stewards of the Dukes of Rutland at various times during the eighteenth century.

1.  Land tax: copies of duplicates, etc, probably in connection with enclosure.

Bar.D.729/7

Account of the shares of the land tax payable by the Duke of Rutland’s tenants.

1756-7

Bar.D.729/5
Copy of the Bakewell land tax duplicate, 

Dec. 24th 1745

Copied by J Barker, March 31st 1757.

Shows the amount paid by the freeholders and by the Duke of Rutland.

Bar.D.729/6

List of the freeholders in Bakewell who have lands in the open fields and those who have not.

Nov. 14th 1757

Bar.D.729/8
Account of the surplus money collected for the land tax.

1756-1762

Bar.D.729/9
Duplicate of the Bakewell Land Tax return 1766.

Bar.D.729/11
Duplicate of the Birchover land tax return.

May 22nd 1767.

Bar.D. 729/12
Duplicate made for raising a tax on lands and tithes in the liberty of Elton.

1767

Bar.D.729/10
Copy of the land tax duplicate for the parish of Darley with indication of the persons entitled to vote.

1768

2.  Bonds, etc.
Bar.D.669
John Healy, grasier, of Newbold (co. Leicester) and John Reeve, yeoman, of the same, to John Barker of Belvoir Castle, in £30; for payment.

Aug 22nd 1721
Bar.D.668
William Junnyns, senior, grasier, of Owston (co. Leicester), Thomas, of Owston (co. Leciester), Thomas Jennyns, yeoman, of Sutton (co. Lincoln ) and William Jynnyns, junior, grasier, of Owston to John Barker, of Belvoir Castle, in £60; for payument.
May 16th 1728.

Bar.D.734/2
Quitclaim.  Alexander Barker of Edensor to Thomas Barker of Bakewell, steward of the Duke of Rutland.  All action, etc.

Jan 6th 1748/9.

Bar.D.754/1
John Bates, baker, of Bakewell to John Barker, steward and gamekeeper of the Duke of Rutland, in £20 to commit no further acts of poaching, Bates being guilty of fishing in the Wye.

April 22nd 1762.

3.  Correspondence and papers
Bar.D.735
Letters from Duke of Rutland to Scholler about the latter’s intention of resigning his stewardship.

April 25th 1723.

Bar.D.756/4
Miscellaneous letters to the Barkers as stewards.

1744-1788.  

Subjects include the Alport Sough Mines 1778.  Fishing Rights in the river Wye near Haddon  1769.

4.  Miscellaneous Papers
Bar.D.756/3

Papers relating to Darley Palfrey silver, 1736-8, the clerk of Youlgreave’s allowance 1749.  Harthill rate 1736,1746, etc.

Bar.D.1736/7
Various accounts including the Whitwell lottery account 1749-53.  Busks mine account 1753-44.

Bar.D.75/8
Survey and observations of the Duke of Rutland’s lands at Bakewell, 1757, copy of the Bakewell enclosure proposals, 1766.  Memoranda for the Duke, 1771.

Bar.D.736/7
Bill of expenses of the commissioners of the Darley Enclosure and request from the owners for a new rate to be made.

1771.

Bar.D.736/5
6 Bundles of miscellaneous stewards papers:-

Copy of the will of Sir Roger Manners of Whitwell, 1632.

Copy of the Aldwarke sheep walk bounder, 1688.

Valuation of the roofs, pipes, wainscots and window stanchions, at Haddon, 1731.

Case concerning Ragman’s Vein, 1752.
Note of land taken from the Duke of Rutland for the Chesterfield-Ernstone Lane Head Turnpike, 1759.

List of men enlisted by Lord Robert Sutton for the Royal Forresters at Bakewell, 1760.

Bond from John Smith, the elder and John his son to John Barker for good behaviour after being guilty of defrauding in their payments of tithe, 1761.

Quarters sessions presentments for the repair of a milldam and lime-kiln at Bakewell, 1770.

Copies of letters about an old house in Bakewell built in 1591.  1771.

Observations on the manor of Haddon, 1775.

Measurements taken on the public road between Bakewell and Youlgreave, 1776.

Copies of letters from Gell about the lease of cotton mills at Alport, 1778.

Barker’s observations on the Curbar Road, 1778.

The following appear to be personal papers of John Barker:-

Note on the Grassington lead mines, 1770.

Declaration by Joseph Skidmore of Monsall Dale that he will deliver to John Barker a receipt (when found) for £70 paid to Barker as Treasurer of the Chesterfield-Ernstone Lane Head Turnpike, 1761.

B.  CIVIL PARISH RECORDS
1.  Assessments
Bar.D.752

An assessment order to the third boroughs to collect £93.6.8 for the charges of quartering five troops of horse Capts. Merdres, Fisher, Villars, Petke and Bridges regiments. N.d. (mid 17th century?).

Bar.D.728
Assessment on Darley in accordance with a rate levied on Births, Marriages and Deaths, Bachelors and Widowers.

May 26th 1696.

Henry Barker named as one of the Collectors.

Bar.D.729/1

Poor rate assessment for Bakewell.

Jan 7th 1730/1.

Francis Roe and Daniel Heathcott, overseers.

Bar.D.729/4
Bakewell highway assessment.

July 12th 1736

(Thomas) Barker, senior and junior, overseers.

Bar.D.729/2
Assessment for the highways at Bakewell.
March 29th 1739/40.

Overseers: Thomas Barker, senior and junior.

Bar.D.730

Land Tax assessment for Great Barlow liberty.

April 21st 1747.

(1st page only).

Bar.D.729/3
Bakewell Church rate.  

July 3rd (no year)

John Gramer and John Thorpe, churchwardens.

2.  Militia
Bar.D.731
Militia master for 1745.  Gives name, place, status and whether volunteered or hired.  Endorsed ‘Enlisted in 1745’.  Possibly Duke of Rutland’s estates.

3.  Charities
Bar.D.786/9
List of the recipients of Thomas Barker’s charity of £100 to the poor of Bakewell distributed by John Barker.
Feb 12th 1788.

C.  BAKEWELL CHURCH
(Papers relating to pews)

Bar.D.434

Grant.  John Pratt, yeoman, of the Borough of Derby to William Greaves, glazier, of Bakewell.  Moiety of the fourth seat on the north side of the chancel in Bakewell Church; for £5.5.0.

March 22nd 1791.

Bar.D.779
Account for pew rents in the new loft at Bakewell parish church.

1775.

Bar.D.778
Alphabetical list of the proprietors of pews in Bakewell Parish Church with the length of the benches and length of benches in the galleries pulled down (during the restoration?).

n.d. 1850?

D.  Miscellaneous Printed MateriaL

Bar.D.837

Explanatory Panorama of the island and city of Corfu.  
n.d.
Bar.D.839

Short sketch of the evidence for the abolition of the Slave Trade.

1792

Bar.D.840
An Address to the People called Methodists, by Samuel Bradburn.

1792.

Bar.D.841/1

Sale particulars for Delaford Park, Iver, Bucks.

1869.

Bar.D.841/2-26
Printed reports, etc. (probably all belonging to Dr T. A. Barker).  

Statement of accounts for St. Thomas’s Hospital, 1867-1886.

Order of the Charity Commissioners and proposed scheme for admitting paying patients to St. Thomas’s, 1879-1880.

Statement on paying patients, 1882.

Memoir of Sir George Burrows, surgeon, (1801-1887) by Sir James Paget.

Reports of the St. Marylebone Western National Schools, 1883-4.  (Dr. Barker was a subscriber).

APPENDIX

Calendar of Correspondence and Papers of

William Barker, Smyrna merchant

and

Captain Charles Parker R.N.

Introduction
These papers refer, in the main, to William Parker (1738-1825), merchant, of Smyrna, Turkey, and to Captain Charles Barker, R.N. (1811-1860).  Charles Fairfax written during the siege of Pontefract Castle in July 1649, with Colonel Fairfax’s reply.  
William Barker, who was born on 31 January, 1737/8, was the youngest son of Thomas Barker (1709-1754), of The Hall, Bakewell, Derbyshire, Steward of the Duke of Rutland.  He emigrated to Florida, where he purchased an estate, but in 1760 he left and settled in Syrma where he remained until his death, which took place on 25 July 1825.  He married, firstly in 1763, Flora Robin (1739-1775) and, secondly in 1776, Maria Elizabeth Schonell of Smyrna (b.1760), and had 25 children.  One of his sons, John (1771-1849), was Consul-General in Egypt from 1829-1833 and a well-known horticulturist.

Captain Charles Barker, R.N. was the 4th son of Thomas Barker (1767-1816) of Ashford Hall, Bakewell, and a great-grandson of Thomas Barker (1709-1816) of Ashford Hall, Bakewell, and a great-grandson of Thomas Barker (1709-1754) mentioned above.  He was born in February 1811 and entered the Royal Navy in 1826, being commissioned as Lieutenant on 28 June 1838.  He saw service in American waters, the West Indies, the Mediterranean, the South-East coast of America, the East Indies and the Pacific.  He was promoted Commander in 1845 and Captain in 1850.  His last command was H.M.S. Retribution, a paddle wheel steam frigate of 56 guns.  He died, unmarried, at Bakewell in May 1860.
Colonel John Morris (1617-1649), a professional soldier, served in Ireland where he distinguished himself, but in 1644 he joined the Parliamentary army.  Being piqued, however, by his non-employment on the formation of the New Model, he determined to avenge himself, which he did eventually in 1648 by the capture, through a ruse, of Pontefract Castle from the Parliamentary garrison.  But, being besieged by General Lambert, he was obliged to retreat with him.   With a companion he escaped into Lancashire, but was betrayed and made prisoner being condemned to death and executed on 23 August, 1649.  Thomas Barker (1709-1754) married in 1729 a descendant of Colonel Morris.
The Registrar desires to thank Major Barker for allowing these interesting papers to be examined and listed.
October 1958








Registrar
BARKER
Part I (MSS retained by the owner)
1. 1648 July: Letter, dated 11 July from Colonel John Morris, Governor of Pontefract Castle, to Colonel Charles Fairfax concerning an exchange of prisoners.  (On obverse) Colonel Fairfax’s reply dated 13 July (signature illegible).  (Framed).
2. 9 George I 1723 June 13:  Appointment by John Duke of Rutland with John Barker (1688-1727), gent, as his Steward and Receiver of his rents and profits yearly issuing or arising out of his castle, lordships, manors, messuages etc, lately in the collection of his servant Thomas Lawrence, in the towns, townships, parishes or places of Belvoir, Barkstone, Long Willington, Rottesford, Braunstone, Cotmanhay, Croxton, South Croxton, Denton, Eagle, Easthorp, Eaton, Fosston, Goldsmithe Grange, Gonarby,  Granby, Graysley Castle, Little Hallam, Harby, Harstone, Ilkeston, Kimberley, Knipton, Melton Mowbray, Melton Ross, Muston, Normanton, Nottingham, Plungar, Redmile, Ropsley, Saltby, Sproxton, Statham, Stonesby, Sutton, Thorp Arnold,  Waltham, and Woolsthorp, in counties Leicester, Lincoln, Nottingham and Derby, at yearly salary of £100.  (Framed).
3. 1731 August 17:  Letter of attorney: John Duke of Rutland appoints Thomas Barker (1709-1754), of Bakewell, co. Derby, gent., his attorney to make re-entry upon a messuage in Bakewell demised to Thomas Bagshaw, late of Bakewell, esq. deceased, by lease by the late Duke of Rutland, for non-payment of rent and to take possession of the messuage; also to recover from the executors of the late Thomas Bagshaw the sum of £90.19.6 due to the Duke of Rutland for arrears of rent, and to give a receipt for the same.  (Framed.)

4. 1797 April 2: (see no. 24)

5. (late 19th century); 2 MS volumes, “Records of the Barker Family” containing transcripts by Mr A Carrington, of Bakewell, Keeper of Muniments of Belvoir, of original deeds, wills, extracts from parish registers of Derby, Wormhill, etc. 
Part II William Barker of Smyrna (Deposited at the City Library, Sheffield)
MUNIMENTS OF TITLE – ABSTRACTS & SCHEDULES
Bar.D.800-6

N.D. (c. 1788): J(ohn) B(arker)’s schedule of the writings belonging to the Hypothecation of Mr William Barker’s house in Smyrna.

1. (B/2) (Bar.D.800/8)
2. 1788 Record of the Title deeds, 27 December.

3. 1788 July 19, transfer of the Hypothecation to J. Barker and W. Walker esq’s, exors to Mr. Charlesworth for 15,000 dollars paid to several persons as under
4. 1787 June 29, paid by Mr. William Barker, 20 September 1786 to Mr. Isaac Morier, 2,500 dollars

5. (B/3) 2,500 see Bar.D.800/11

6. (B/4) 2,000 see Bar.D.800/12

7. (B/5) 4,500 see Bar.D.800/13

8. (B/6) 1,000 see Bar.D.800/14

9. (B/7) 2,500 see Bar.D.800/15

Total
15,000
Equivalent to £1,500. Part of Mr. Charlesworth’s legacy, the remaining £500 being paid into Mr John Dunnage’s hands by letter 26 September 1788.  B/8.
7.
1773 March 25: Release: William Barker, late of Bakewell, now of Smyrna, merchant to John Barker, his brother, ex’or of their father, Thomas Barker of Bakewell: 500 li, received under his father’s will.  B/1
8.
N.D. (c.1787): Copies of agreement registered in the British Chancellaria at Syrna, 1782 November 1: Hypothecation by Mr William Barker of the Yedick of his house in the Frank Street (Strat Franca), Syrnia, for 15,000 dollars (piastre) divided as follows: Lee and Maltass, 4,000 at 5%, Valentine Humphreys, Isaac Morier and Joseph Franel each 2,000 at 8%: Lee and Maltass, Humphrys, Morier and Franel each a further 500 at 5%; with certificate of registration before George Boddington, Cancellier, and copy of Barker’s agreement to deposit the original agreement, and papers proving his property in the Yedick, in safe of said Lee and Maltass. (Italian and English.)

1787 February 1:  Several opinions concerning the good security of the above: Anthony Hayes, consul; Joseph Franel; Lee and sons; Morier and Gribble; George Perkins. (English only)  (Endorsed no. 1) B/2

9.
1801 July 15:  Mortgage by William Barker of Smyrna, merchant of rent of 3 warehouses in his backyard, as security for payment of 4,900 dollars due to his wife Mary Elizabeth; recites various ways in which debts arose; if the house is sold after his decease, before she is repaid, the balance is to be paid to her after payment of £2,000 due to Mr Charlesworth’s ex’ors; refers to various other previous transactions connected with these matters; witnessed by George Roddington, Cancellier; countersigned and sealed by Francis Werry, consul.  (Seal applied, red wax, oval, device a ship). B/11
MUNIMENTS OF TILE – WILLS
10.
1823 February 25: (see under Correspondence, August 2nd 1825, Bar/D.800/42)

ESTATE AND PERSONAL – ACCOUNTS

11.
1787 November 13: Certificate of receipt, made in the Cancellaria, of Mr Joseph Franel, for bill received from Mr Thomas John Barker of Smyrna for £250 on Mr John Dunnage of London, agent to Mr John Barker and William Walker, ex’ors of the Rev. Robert Charlesworth of Halifax, in payment for his interest in 2,500 dollars in the hypothecation of Mr William Barker of Smyrna: attested by George Boddington, Cancellier, and countersigned on November 15 by Anthony Hayes, consul.  (English) (Seal applied, red wax, device a ship).  (Endorsed no. 5) B/3
12.
1787 November 12:  Certificate of receipt, made in the Cancellaria, of Mr Pietro Paola Giera, for 2,000 dollars (piastre), received of Mr Thomas John Barker, formerly advanced by Mr Antonio Bani to Mr William Barker, on the security of his house: Bani assigned his claim to Giera by document registered in Cancellaria on  April 1784; (Italian); with Thomas John Barker’s statement that was acting on behalf of ex’ors of the Rev. Mr Robert Charlesworth; attested by George Boddington, Cancellier, and countersigned on 15 November by Anthony Hayes, Consul.  (English)  (Seal applied, red wax, oval, device a ship)   (Endorsed no. 6) B/4
13.
1787 November 15:  Certificate of receipt, made in Cancellaria, of Richard Lee junior, for Lee and sons of Smyrna, British merchants for 4,500 dollars received from Mr Thomas John Barker; formerly furnished to Mr William Barker by Messrs Lee and Maltass in hypothecation of his house: Lee, in consideration gives up claim to sum so hypothecated, for his father Mr Richard Lee senior and as ex’or of Mr William Maltass, to Mr Charlesworth’s ex’ors: attested by cancellier and countersigned by consul.  (Seal applied, red wax, oval, device a ship)  (Endorsed no. 7)   B/5
14.  
1788 May 10:  Certificate of receipt, made in the Cancellaria, of Mr Conrad Godard Nicholas Schultz for 1,000 dollars, received of Mr Thomas John Barker, formerly advanced by Mr John Olivier (etc.): the claim was assigned by Olivier to Schultz on 10 December 1782.  (Italian) with Thomas John Barker’s statement, 17 May, that he was acting on behalf of Mr Charlesworth’s ex’ors: attested by Cancellier and countersigned, 27 November, by consul.  (Seal supplied, red wax, oval, device a ship).  (Endorsed no 8) B/6

15.
1788 November 24:  Certificate of receipt, made in the Cancellaria, of Mr Richard Lee, junior, for Lee and sons, Smyrna, for 2,500 dollars, received of Mr Thomas John Barker, advanced by the late Mr Valentine Humphrys to Mr William Barker; Lee was acting on behalf of his father, Mr Richard Lee, senior and his brother William Lee, ex’ors of Humphrys, in virtue of their order dated London, 18 July 1788: the claim to the said sum, hypothecated, is made over to Mr Charlesworth’s ex’ors: attested by Cancellier and countersigned by consul on 27 November.  (Seal applied, red wax, oval, device a ship)  (Endorsed no 9) B/7.
16.
1789 April 1:  Promise to repay loan:  Sarula Barker, London, to John Barker esq: £15.15.0: witnessed, William Tomlinson.  N/9
17.
1796 January 14: (see under Correspondence Bar.D.800/23.  A/5.

18.  
1797 January 31: Current account of W. Barker, Smyrna, with the ex’ors of John Barker, esq, Bakewell: particulars of balances and profits of one forty-eighth share of mines at Old Cross East, and Old Cross West, from 1791: T. B(arker) proposes to remit £39.17.5. with interest from 14 January 1796, being the balance of Mrs (W) B(arker)’s £200 to Mr Perkins in the form of land, as soon as communication with Smyrna is secure; with regard to the shares in the profit of the mines, if there is more than enough to replay what is outstanding; the balance will be remitted to Mr William Barker.  B/10
ESTATE AND PERSONAL – CORRESPONDENCE
19.
1791 December 2: William Barker from Laghorn to Mr Thomas Dunnage, London (his sister’s husband); has agreed to join Mr Tomlinson at Smyrna; hopes for his salary equal to half the profits; Mr Thornton interested: arrival of his daughter Grace via Falmouth; asks for loan of £50.  A/1
20.
1794 August 2: William Barker from Smyrna to his brother John Barker esq, Bakewell, Derbyshire; asking for help to pay his debts, amounting in all to £950, order to qualify him to be chosen as consul at Smyrna; Mr. Tomlinson, having learnt the business and language from him, has dissolved partnership: mention of a cargo of lead.  A/2
21.  
1795 June 11: Same to same: concerning a cargo of lead, sent by Mr Dunnage on order of John Barker, to Mr Perkins at Smyrna for benefit of William Barker’s wife and children; mentions that a squadron has blocked up French frigates which formerly infested the seas there; requests that Mr Perkins may have authority advantageously to Mr Tomlinson and another; marriage of his daughter Grace to Mr Richards, purser of the Nemesis frigate: hopes his daughter Sarula will come out from England.  A/3

22.
1795 November 17: William Barker from Smyrna to Messrs Thomas and John Barker, Bakewell: requests that balance of £300, promised by their late father for William’s wife and children, he paid with interest; in 1780 William sold to their father a half share in a little estate in Lincs. And a debt of the Marquis of Granby for £400, and was to receive a further sum if the debt was paid; the £200 was promised to his wife in satisfaction of this, and he is also entitled to interest from the time when the debt was paid: his daughter Grace has gone to Salonica with her husband, and his son James is also on the Nemesis, rated as a midshipman.  A/4
23.
1796 November 17: William Barker (the younger) from London to (Thomas) Barker; enclosing a letter from his father to Thomas’s brother John, concerning the £200 promised, etc; endorsed with accounts of expenses of the family amounting to £45.15.6.  A/5

24.
1797 April 2: William Barker from Smyrna to Mr Thomas Barker at Bakewell.  Describes disturbances following the slaughter of a Turk by an alleged Venetian from a Russian ship.  Fearing that justice would not be done, the populace came in a body to Frank Street killing Christians and plundering shops.  Among the English, Mr. Perkins was the least sufferer.  Mr. Barker had his door burnt by falling timbers but his property was saved through the intervention of a Turkish friend.  Mentions that Mrs. Perkins (Mrs. Barker’s sister) had a child on the night on the fire on board a ship with 60-70 people in the cabin ‘all fugitives from the shore’.  Feels it would be prudent to retire to England.  Postscript by William Barker junior asking for shoes.  (Framed, and retained by the owner.)
25.
1801 July 15: Maria E. Barker (wife of William Barker) from Smyrna to Messrs. Thomas and John Barker, Bakewell: requesting them to account with her husband, and not with her, for the balance of the £200 promised her by their father, since her husband has hypothecated to her the warehouses built on premises appertaining to their house, as security for payment to her.  A/6
26.
1801 July 17:  William Barker from Smyrnia to Mr. Thomas Barker, Bakewell; enclosing A/6 with deed of mortgage of warehouses; reminds him of transactions concerning estate at Snitterton and Wigtoft, Lincs., and debt of Marquis of Granby, etc. and requests that balance due to him be paid to Mr William Tomlinson; as it is to no purpose to wait for a peace and send it to Mr. Perkins; possibility of rupture with Turks, accordingly he has taken steps to obtain Swedish protection and a firman from the Port. A/7
27.
1801 September 8; William Tomlinson from London to Thomas barker, esq., Bakewell, forwarding A/7 (and A/6); is ready to receive the money, to purchase articles for William Barker’s family; will furnish particulars about warehouses if required.  A/8

28.
1801 September 8: R. Barker from London to Thomas Barker, esq., Bakewell; covering letter sent with A/7, A/8, etc.  A/9
29.
1804: William Barker from Smyrna to Mr. Thomas Barker, Bakewell: a small balance due from William to estate of Thomas’s father should have been paid off out of William’s share of a mine; he requests Thomas to order him out of it a pair of pumps and a pair of boots from “my brother Robert clerk of Youlgreave”, and send them to Mr. William Tomlinson in London; asks news of relations and Bakewell, and sends news of his own children, and of a dangerous voyage to Egypt to do business on Commission, in the course of which he was nearly carried off by the “bloody flux”.  A/10

30.
1812 August 24; William Barker from Smyrna to Thomas Barker, esq., Ashford Hall, near Bakewell: refers to his recent illness, and arrangements concerning the Yedick or goodwill of his business, which he wishes to keep in the family if possible; refers to Mr. Robert Wilkinson, Thomas’s agent during Mr. Perkins’s absence from Smyrna; and to the ex’ors of Mr. Charlesworth, who had an interest in his business; enquiries again about his share of the mine. A/11
31.
Copy of A/11, also sent.  A/12

32.
1814 March 10; William Barker from Smyrna to Thomas Barker, esq., Ashford near Bakewell: thanks for letter of 12 January 1813; has sent a letter by Mr Deyong of Smyrna, who was going to Derbyshire; has not received the does; thanks for advice about will; gives news of his son John, of Aleppo, who has visited Latachia, to consult Lady Stanhope’s physician, his daughter Mary married to Mr. William Maltass, and other members of his family, including his son Edward in business at Malta.  A/13

33.
1815 January 30: Copy (sent): William Barker from Smyrna to Thomas Barker, esq., Bakewell; has not received the shoes; his son Robert is in London, acting as a Methodist preacher; he is intending to make over the Yedick of his business to one of his sons and retire in Leghorn; the plague at Smyrna; his son-in-law, William Maltass, means to settle in London.  A/12
34.
1815 August 2: William Barker to Thomas Barker, esq., Ashford, near Bakewell: the shoes have not arrived; Mr. Robert Wilkinson bankrupt, so the power of attorney given him by Mr Charlesworth’s ex’ors should be annulled by sending to Mr George Perkins; the goodwill of his house not to be sold after his death, until his family is provided for; news of his family including his son George at a place near Halifax in America.  A/15

35.
1816 September 7: William Barker from Smyrna to Thomas Barker, esq., Bakewell: mostly repetition of A/15, which he fears he may not have received: endorsed with a note from John S. Richards, Lawrenny near Pembroke, giving William’s address, - Mr Wm. Barker, Smyrna, care of Messrs. Smitmers, Vienna and Isaac Morier, esq., Constantinople.  A/16

36.
1816 November 22: James Dunnage from Forest, Walthamstow, to John Parker, esq., Bakewell: necessity of withdrawing letters of attorney, given by John’s late brother Thomas, ex’or of Mr. Charlesworth, to Mr. Wilkinson; Mr. Charlesworth, to Mr. Wilkinson; Mr. Charlesworth’s legacy was to be divided, after William Barker’s death, between the surviving issue of William and Flora his first wife; William’s son-in-law, Mr. William Maltass, suggested as suitable agent.  A/17
37.
1816 December 7: (Rough copy): (John Barker to James Dunnage; thanks for trouble taken concerning their uncles William’s house; enclosing a letter to William in one to Mr. Wherry, for James to read and forward if he thinks proper; apologies for delay in answering, due to his absence at Derby; requests James to charge a chest of tea sent to Mr. Drewry to his account: state of lead market.  A/15
 38.
1816 December 7: (Rough copies): (John Barker) to Francis Wherry, esq., British Consul at Myrna: asking him to recover letters of attorney, and any other papers concerning William Barker’s house, from Mr. Robert Wilkinson enclosing letter for William Varer. (also): (John Barker) to Mr. William Barker at Smyrna: acknowledges letter of 17 September addressed to his late brother Thomas; explains the request to the consul; asks further information about the whole business; suggests appointing Mr. William Maltass as agent.  A/19.
39.
1817 June 5: William Barker from Smyrna to his nephew John Barerk, esq., Bakewell: thanks for letter of 7 December; John now one of the ex’tors of Mr. Charlesworth; William hopes he will agree not to sell William’s house after his death, but that it be kept for his widow, children and legitimate grandchildren; consul ferry applied to Mr. Wilkinson for the letter of attorney, which he could not find, but gave a written undertaking to destroy it if found later: after William’s death, his ex’ors, of whom Mr Tomlinson in London is one, will apply to John for orders; if John wishes to appoint an agent in Smyrna, William proposes his brother-in-law Mr. George Perkins, as his son-in-law Mr. William Maltass is leaving, and has already sent his wife Mary (Mimica) and 6 children to England under care of William’s son Samuel; all his family at Smyrna well, except his wife who is rheumatic, and himself suffering from vertigo and failing sight; his son Richard engaged in counting house of Messrs. Hayes and Fontain, Henry with Messrs. Lee and Brant; Benjamin with his brother at Aleppo; Frederick in the counting house of Messrs. Webb and Co. at Leghorn; Edward in the secretaries office at Corfu; William has been troubled for the third time by his vagabond son George, whom he has fitted out again and who is now employed navigating a Swedish schooner to Algiers and Leghorn; his first wife is remarried in London, his 2nd he has left in Boston in America with two children; Grace has retired to Wales with her husband, and Sally (Sarula) is married to a Mr. Goodwin of Ludlow; respects to John’s wife and all relations at Bakewell.  A/20.
40.
1817 November 11:  Coy: (John Barker) to Mr. William Barker: has delayed answering the last until Mr. Dunnage had visited Derbyshire; John and Dunnage have examined Mr. Charlesworth’s will; William has no power to bequeath any of the £2,000, but John will be glad to appropriate some of it to the support of William’s widow, subject to legal advice; John approves of Mr. Werry’s action with regard to Mr. Wilkinson; he does not wish to appoint a new agent at present; George ought to make his own way in the world.  A/21.
41.
1520 January 17: William Barker from Smyrna to the ex’tors of the Reverend Mr. M. Charlesworth of Halifax, (directed to John Barker esq., Ashford Hall, near Bakewell): since William is not allowed to take possession of the £2,000 left him by Mr. Charlesworth, as it is hypothecated on the Yedick or goodwill of his house, he requests ex’ors to confirm their former agent Mr. George Perkins, and send him the money to lend out at Smyrna and pay the interest to William, to maintain his family in accordance with testator’s idea.  A/22.
42.
1525 August 2:  (Copy): (George Perkins), ex’tor of William Barker at Syrna to William Tomlinson, esq., London: William Tomlinson, esq., London: William Parker died on 25 July, aged 86; he enclosed copy of will, of which Tomlinson is also ex’tor: he requires instructions from Mr. Charlesworth’s trustees, to see if Mr. Barker is authorised to dispose of the legacy in favour of part only of his children: the estate is £20,000 in debt for moneys taken up, for reparation of the premises, and funeral expenses, which must be paid from future rents, and sale of furniture: William’s sons Richard, Henry and Benjamin at Smirna, and Samuel at Constantinople, think it would be in the best interest of the heirs not to sell the house.  (also on same sheet):

1825 August 17: same to same late Mr. Barker’s son s have given him a note of rents, inventory of furniture, and note of debts: best to defer all sales until affairs of Greeks and Turks are settled, or at least until he hears from Tomlinson or Mr. Charlesworth’s trustees; the chief tenants of the house are Greeks who have come into the quarters for safety since the revolution; many opulent Greeks are absent in Europe, and it is likely that rents and values will go up when they return.  (No signature)  (also on same sheet):

1825 February 25:  Copy of will of William Barker, son of Thomas and Sarah Barker of Bakewell, living at Smirna: soul to God, (etc.): cites will of his late cousin the Reverend Robert Charlesworth of Halifax, Yorkshire, directing that £2,000 be advanced to him for his family, not subject to the demands of his creditors; which sum was used to purchase the Yedick or goodwill of his house in Smirna; directs that said Yedick, including 2 increases after original purchase, he sold as soon as convenient, and the money, after payment of hypothecations and debts, be equally divided between his daughters Sarah and Grace in England, and Mariann and Louise in Smirna, and Robert lawful son of his late son William; hoping that his daughter Mary who is well provided for, and his sons who can provide for themselves, will approve: his claim to lands in East Florida, U.S.A, now pending, to be divided between all his children living and his grandson Robert; also the proceeds of all his furniture, plate, linen, books, jewels etc.; 130 Spanish dollars lent to him by his daughter Marianna on 1 January 1814 to be secured to her by hypothecation on the rents of house and premises, and proceeds of sale hypothecation on the rents of house and premise, and proceeds of sale thereof: George Perkins, senior, of Smirna and William Tomlinson of London, to be ex’ors: revokes previous wills of 20 December 1759 left with his brother-in-law Mr. Thomas Dunnage of London and of 5 April 1791 left with Mr. Thomas Hall, chaplain to the British factory at Leghorn: witnessed, George Boddington, Canc’l; J.C. Joly; B.E. Codd.  A/23
43.
1825 September 29: William Tomlinson from London to John Barker, esq., Bakewell: death of Mr. William Barker: Mr. George Perkins and Tomlinson, ex’ors: John’s father was one of the ex’ors of the Reverent Mr. Charlesworth, and John is his representative: in his opinion the disposal of the property rests with the ex’ors of Charlesworth, and not those of W. Barker; it will be in interest of W. Barker’s family not to sell house; refers to extract from letter from Mr. Perkins, mentioning that the annual rent amounts to P13,450.00 which at current exchange of R46 per £, will be about £500, from which must be deducted repairs and ground rent thought to be about P500: is considering asking counsel’s opinion, and would like to know if John has any points to be included in case: desires to save time and expense, and be of service to late Mr. Barker’s family.  (On same sheet):  Copy of J(ohn) B(arker)’s answer to Mr. Tomlinson: agrees that William Barker had no right to dispose of hypothecation; thinks it best to have counsel’s opinion, whether the money is to be divided equally between William’s children or at discretion of Mr. Charlesworth’s ex’ors: if it is at their discretion, he will be glad of assistance from Messrs. Tomlinson and Perkins as he knows little of the circumstances of his uncle’s family: agrees that house should not be sold at present.  A/24.
44.
1826 February 1:  (Copy): Richard Barker; H. R. Barker; Benjamin Barker; and Samuel Barker (signature added at Constantinople on 10 February) to (Mr. Tomlinson): refers to former letter in which they desired that their father’s will should be carried out, but that the house should not be sold yet: now, since some of the family do not agree that it is best to delay sale of the house, they, wishing to avoid law discussions, beg leave to annul their determination to give up their share of the £2,000 under the Reverend Mr. Charlesworth’s will; they are no longer of the opinion that it is best to delay sale as any apparent advantage would be lost by the determination of the Turkish currency: they request him to inform Mr. Charlesworth’s ex’or that they desire a speedy settlement of the affair.  (On same sheet):- 

1826 March 21: (Copy): (Mr Tomlinson to counsel): in case submitted, the principal question is whether the ex’ors of Charlesworth or of Barker have right to dispose of £2,000 advanced by Charlesworth’s ex’ors on security of Barker’s house at Smyrna: houses held by foreigners in Turkey are held by Yedick, similar to copyhold in England, subject to a small ground rent to Turkish proprietor; Barker thought he was free to dispose of the legacy or the house on which it was secured, and the hypothecations mentioned in his will, to be paid off, are some small sums borrowed on the rents of the house; the house will produce only the £2,000 or less: if Barker’s ex’ors can dispose, there is no difficulty; if the control rests with Charlesworth’s ex’ors, are they to divide it according to Barker’s will, or as per copy annexed, from Mr. Barker’s four sons: he supposes it must go into Chancery: hopes to send counsel’s opinion in a week or 10 days: he believes the list he sent of Mr. Barker’s family is correct and that George died in America.  A/25.
PART III CHARLES BARKER, R.N.

(Deposited at the City Library, Sheffield)
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45.
1851 January 17:  Copy of a despatch from J. W. Farren, at Manila, to Lord Palmerston reporting on the Spanish punitive expedition against pirates on the island of Tonquil and a visit by the force to Sooloo.

46.
1851 February 2:  Translation of a communication from the Sultan of Suluk to Sir James Brooke reporting an attack by the Spaniards on Suluk on 31 December.

47.
1851 February 3:  Governor of P.W. Island. Singapore and Malacca to Senior Naval Officer in the Straits of Malacca, transmitting a despatch by the British Consul at Manila to Lord Palmerson, Foreign Secretary, reporting the proceedings of the Spanish Government of Manila regarding the Islands of Sooloo.

48.
1851 March 13:  Copy, addressed to the Senior Consul of England, of a despatch received by the Governor of P. W. Island, Singapore and Malacca from the Governor General of the Philippines relating to destruction of Selooese forts in retaliation for an outrage committed by the Solooese.

49.
1851 April 2:  Governor of P. W. Island, Singapore, Malacca to Captain Parker, Senior Naval Officer in the Straits of Malacca, transmitting copy of a communication from Gen. Blanco, Captain General of Manila, relating to proceedings of the Spanish Expedition against the island of Sooloo.
50.
(c.1851):  Translation of communication from the Sultan Malana Al Sultan Mahomed Pulaluh of Suluk to Sir James Brooke, Governor of Labuan, complaining of Spanish aggressions against Suluk.

51.
1851: Copy of despatch from W. E. Rear Admiral C. J Austin, Naval Commander in Chief to Spenser St. John, esq., noting Commissioner in Borneo, relating to ratification of the treaty with the Sultan of Sulu.

52.
1851 February 3:  Despatch by Sir James Brooke, C. B., Commissioner, from Singapore, to Captain Barker, R. N., H.M.S. Amazon, advising postponement of Mr. St. John’s visit to Sulu to ratify the Treaty in view of the likelihood of Spanish action against Sulu following the aggression of the Sulu government on a Spanish force, but recommending the despatch of a vessel there to prevent any claim being set up to the Eastern coasts by the Spanish.
53.
1851:  A document written in Arabic and stamped with the stamp of the Resident Councillor, Singapore.

54.
(c. 1858):  Translation of Communication from the Insurgent Prince at Nanking to Lord Elgin.

PUBLIC CENTRAL: NAVAL – CORRESPONDENCE
55.
1846 February 21:  Copy of official letter from Captain Botham to Captain Hope, H.M.S. “Firebrand”, conveying the C-in-C’s approbation of his conduct in the destruction of the Argentine Schooner of War “Chacaberco” and Captain Botham’s personal thanks to Lieutenant Barker for the ability displayed by him.
56.
1849 September 24:  Report of Harbour Master, Hong Kong, of Typhoon, 13th and 14th September.

57.
1858 November 23:  Letter from Lord Elgin, H.M.S. Furious, to Captain Barker, enclosing copy of a report from Mr. Wade, his Chinese Secretary, and also expressing his, Lord Elgin’s, thanks for the manner in which Captain Barker carried out his wishes regarding the passing through the lines of the rebels at Nankin.
58.
1858 December 23:  Report of Captain Osborn, R.N., commanding H.M.S. Frigate “Furious”, off New-Keang, to Captain Charles Barker, H.M.S. Retribution, on the grounding of the “Furious” in the river Yang-tse-Kiang owing to an unexpected fall in the river, and includes the silencing of the guns of the forts at Nigan-King.

PUBLIC CENTRAL – TREATIES
Bar.D.801

59.
1849 May 29:  Copy of English Treaty with the Sultan of Suloo signed at Suloo, 29 May 1849.

FAMILY HISTORY
60.
19th century:  Copy of epitaphs in Lower Peover church, Cheshire, to George Shakerley of Gwenitt, co. Denbigh, died 1736, and of his wife, died 1767.

61.
1839 January 21:  Appointment of Lieutenant Charles Barker as Additional Lieutenant of H.M.S. “Cornwallis”.

62.
1839 August 9: Appointment of Lieutenant Charles Barker, Additional Lieutenant of H.M.S. “Seringapatam”, as Lieutenant of H.M.Sloop “Snake”.
63.
1844 September 24:  Appointment of Lieutenant Charles Barker as Commander of H.M.S. “Firebrand.”

64.
1845 November 18:  Appointment of Charles Barker as Commander of H.M.Sloop “Blossom”.

65.
1849 September 28:  Appointment of Commander Charles Barker as Commander of H.M.Sloop “Serpent”.

66.
1850 December 20:  Appointment of Charles Barker as Captain of H.M.S, “Amazon”.
PERSONAL PAPERS – CORRESPONDENCE
67.
1826:  Mrs. Barker to her son, Frank: mentions appointment of her son, Charles, to H.M.S. Britannia.

68.
1830 June 22:  To Miss F. Barker from T. A. Barker, (her cousin), from Keningswinter.

69.
1831 August 28: Charles Barker, H.M.S. Ganges, from Malta, to his mother.

70.
1832: Charles Barker, H.M.S. Donegal, to his brother, Frank, from the Downs.

71.
1838 January 14 & 15:  Charles Barker, H.M.S. Pembroke, to his mother and brother, Frank, from Salamis.
72.
1838 April 30 & May 2:  Charles Barker, H.M.S, Pembroke, to his mother and brother, Henry, from Malta.

73.
1839 October 23:  Charles Barker, H.M.S. Seringapatam, to his mother, from Barbados.

74.
1840 July 27:  Charles Barker, H.M.S. Snake, to his mother, from Halifax (N.S.).

75.
1842 December 15:  Charles Barker, H.M.S. Monarch, to his mother, from Malta.
76.
1843 January 11 & 16:  Charles Barker, H.M.S. Monarch, to his brother, Alfred, from Malta.

77.
1843 February 11:  Charles Barker, H.M.S. Firebrand, to his brother, frank, from below San Nicholas.

78.
1846 September 1:  Charles Barker, H.M.S. Firebrand, to his brother, Frank, from Bueonos Ayres.
79.
1849 November 24 & 27:  Charles Barker, H.M.S. Serpent, from Madeira, to his mother.

80.
1850 March 20:  Charles Barker, H.M.S. Serpent, to his mother, from Singapore.

81.
1850 November 17:  Same to same, H.M.S. Amazon, Hong Kong.

82.
1855 September 24:  …. Harvey, Singapore, to Charles Barker.

83.  
1857 February 5:  Charles Barker, H.M.S. Retribution, off Gozo, to his mother.

84.
1857 March 25:  Same to same, 300 miles from Teneriffe.

85.
1857 March 28:  same to same, Teneriffe.


86. 
(1857) Good Friday & April 17: Same to same, at sea (Atlantic).

87.
1857 May 3-12:  Same to same, off Brazil coats and in Rio harbour.

88.
1857 June 6 & 12: Charles Barker to his brother, Frank, from Stanley Harbour, East Falkand.

89.
1857 June 30-July 5:  Same to same, in the Pacific and at Valparaiso.  (latter portion missing.)

90.
1857 July 12:  Charles Barker to his mother, from British Legation, Santiago.

91.
1857 July 31:  Charles Barker to Frank, from Arica.

92.
1857 August 10:  Charles Barker to his mother, from Callos.

93.
1857 August 21:  Charles Barker to his brother, Alfred, from Callos.
94.
1857 October 5:  Charles Barker to his mother, from Islay.

95.
1857 October 24:  Same to same, from Callos.

96.
1857 November 9:  Same to same, from Callos, (portion missing).

97. 
1857 December 25-1858 January 6:  Same to same, from Arica.

98.
1858 January 28-February 1:  Same to same, from Valparaiso.
99.
1858 February 28-March 6:  Charles Barker to his mother, at sea and Arica.

100.
1858 March 21-28:  Same to same, on passage to Callos.

101.
1858 April 25-30:  Same to same, on passage to and at Honorura.
102.
1858 June 2-20:  Same to same, on passage to Hong Kong.
103.
1858 July 4 & 7:  Same to same, off the Peiho.

104.
 1858 July 16-29:  Same to same, Yellow Sea and Shanghai.

105.
1858 August 18-26:  Same to same, off Yeddo, Japan.

106.
1858 September 20:  Same to same, from Shanghai.
107.
1858 October 3:  Same to same, from Shanghai.

108.
1858 October 30: Same to same, from Shanghai.

109.
1858 November 2:  Same to same, from Shanghai.

110.
1858 November 29-1859 January 6:  Same to same, up the Yangtze river and from Shanghai: attack on forts at Nankin.  (sheet 1 missing).

111.
c. 1859:  Extract from letter received by Captain Barker at Woohoo on Christmas Day 1858 from the Chinese General at Nankin apologising for the forts having opened fire on the British ships.
112.
c. 1859:  Extract from a letter from Mr. Frederic Bower of Shanghai to his brother describing Captain Barker’s conduct when the British Ships were fired on by the forts at Nankin.  (2 copies)

MISCELLANEOUS – NEWSPAPER CUTTINGS
113.
1859 March 2:  Report, from a correspondent, in the Times of March 2, 1859, of the expedition to Hankow.

MISCELLANEOUS – PRINTED PHAMPHLETS
114.
1831 August 20:  A printed article by A. Osborne, Surgeon of H.M.S. Ganges, describing a visit to Graham Island, a volcano on the coast of Sicily.

115.
N.D.:  Galley proof of part of an article describing the visit of H.M.S. Reynard to the Great Wall of China.

